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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Let me just

          3  remind everybody, if you want to speak on any of the

          4  items, please fill out a Speaker Request Form at the

          5  Sergeant-At-Arms' desk, and it is extremely

          6  important that you indicate the item that you're

          7  speaking on, since we have a number of items, and

          8  also it's preferable to indicate whether you're

          9  speaking in favor or in opposition, or both. We

         10  actually have somebody who signed up to say they are

         11  in favor and in opposition.

         12                 We have a very lengthy agenda today,

         13  so I would appreciate everybody's cooperation. If

         14  you have any conversations that you want to have,

         15  please take it outside so everybody can hear

         16  testimony and questions of the Council members.

         17                 Joining me are members of the

         18  Committee. To my right, Eric Gioia, Melinda Katz,

         19  Mike McMahon; and we're also joined by Council

         20  Members Robert Jackson and Leroy Comrie.

         21                 I'd like to make an opening statement

         22  in reference to the first item on the agenda, it is

         23  something that I have a personal interest in.

         24                 Since assuming the position of Zoning

         25  and Franchises' chair, I along with my Committee
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          2  members have reviewed, amended and voted on numerous

          3  zoning applications impacting each and every

          4  borough.

          5                 In many instances we have made

          6  significant changes in these applications to affect

          7  the needs and desires of community residents

          8  throughout the City.

          9                 Today I'm extremely pleased to be

         10  discussing and voting on historic changes to the

         11  community facilities part of the zoning code.

         12  Correcting the abuses of this part of the zoning

         13  resolution has been a personal crusade of mine, part

         14  of my election, and it was the first item on my

         15  agenda upon election to the City Council.

         16                 The proposal that would be presented

         17  today is the result of a joint collaboration between

         18  the Department of City Planning and the City Council

         19  over the past year and a half.

         20                 I want to express my appreciation to

         21  the Administration, City Planning Commissioner

         22  Amanda Burden, Speaker Gifford Miller, Council

         23  Member Melinda Katz as Chair of the Land Use

         24  Committee and my colleagues for their assistance and

         25  efforts to make this proposal a reality.
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          2                 It is a victory for every civic,

          3  preservation and zoning group in the City that has

          4  advocated for these changes. Their persistence in

          5  demanding change demonstrated the overwhelming need

          6  for these amendments.

          7                 It must also be recognized that this

          8  is but a first step, albeit a giant step, in

          9  preserving the quality of life in our City.

         10                 I look forward to hearing from the

         11  speakers who are in attendance this morning and

         12  beginning the formal adoption and review process on

         13  these much needed zoning changes.

         14                 I see we've also been joined by

         15  Committee member/Council Member Christine Quinn.

         16                 Making the presentation on the first

         17  item, which is preconsidered 20045035OSY, amendments

         18  to the zoning code as it relates to community

         19  facilities, Sandy Hornick, representing the

         20  Department of City Planning, and Mike Weil, and Gail

         21  Benjamin, the head of the Land Use Division of the

         22  City Council.

         23                 And by the way, let me also express

         24  my appreciation to the Land Use Division and Gail

         25  Benjamin for all the work that they put on this
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          2  proposal for making it happen.

          3                 Come on, Gail, we waited a long time

          4  for this. Let's go.

          5                 MS. BENJAMIN: As many of you know,

          6  over the course of time, many communities have

          7  raised questions. My name is Gail Benjamin. I'm the

          8  Director of the Land Use Division of the City

          9  Council, and as Council Member Avella has stated, to

         10  my right is Sandy Hornick, and Mike Weil, from City

         11  Planning. We are here to give a brief discussion

         12  about the text that we are considering so that the

         13  Council might be able to file an application jointly

         14  with the Department of City Planning to change some

         15  aspects of the community facility text which

         16  currently exists in the zoning resolution.

         17                 As many of you are aware, there have

         18  been issues over the years that have been raised by

         19  many communities about the community facilities text

         20  and certain aspects of it.

         21                 Some years ago City Planning began to

         22  look into this matter and more recently conducted

         23  some field studies to discover the extent, if any,

         24  of the problems that existed out in different

         25  communities.
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          2                 As a result of that work, plus the

          3  many letters that people have sent to us and to

          4  them, we today feel comfortable in presenting this

          5  first step of changes in the community facilities'

          6  text.

          7                 Perhaps we should just go into the

          8  text right now.

          9                 MR. WEIL: Good morning, Chair Avella,

         10  and distinguished members of the Committee, on

         11  behalf of Amanda Burden I am pleased to testify

         12  today on the proposed joint application by the

         13  Department of City Council (sic), and the City

         14  Council Land Use Committee for a zoning text

         15  amendment regarding the regulation of community

         16  facilities.

         17                 The proposed text amendment is the

         18  product of close collaboration, between the

         19  Department, Council staff, especially Gail, Council

         20  Members on these important issues.

         21                 Chairperson Burden asked me

         22  particularly to note the leadership of Council

         23  Member Avella on these issues.

         24                 A joint application is unusual, and

         25  has been filed in the past, when there has been a

                                                            10

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  broad consensus on the need for change and a shared

          3  vision of how to proceed. We think those elements

          4  are present here.

          5                 Community facilities is a term we use

          6  and to zoning to describe a wide variety of

          7  educational, health care, religious and other types

          8  of largely not-for-profit institutions, that serve

          9  our communities and benefit them immensely.

         10                 Zoning regulations in New York City

         11  have long recognized their beneficial character by

         12  making special accommodations to facilitate their

         13  ability to locate in our neighborhoods.

         14                 At the same time, however, community

         15  facilities can sometimes pose Land Use conflicts for

         16  residents in the surrounding community.

         17                 These issues have mushroomed as the

         18  facilities have grown in number and size,

         19  particularly when they are designed to serve

         20  regional needs, rather than local populations.

         21                 Working with the Council staff and

         22  Council Member Avella, the Department has identified

         23  a number of changes to the regulations that we

         24  believe would reduce the Land Use conflicts while

         25  respecting the needs of community facility providers
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          2  and their clients.

          3                 These changes primarily relate to the

          4  City's low-density neighborhoods where the problems

          5  posed by community facilities located in close

          6  proximity to residents can sometimes be particularly

          7  acute, but also include improved protections in all

          8  residents districts.

          9                 Proposed amendments represent an

         10  initial set of changes for which we believe a

         11  significant level of consensus can be achieved. We

         12  will continue to work in partnership with the

         13  Council on this subject, and determine jointly what

         14  our future strategy will be on these complicated

         15  issues.

         16                 The application before you does,

         17  however, represent an important initiative to

         18  address the concerns resulting from community

         19  facilities in many of our neighborhoods, and if

         20  enacted, would significantly improve quality of life

         21  in those areas.

         22                 You said brief, but I went away for

         23  two days and it got twice as long. So, I apologize

         24  in advance.

         25                 Health care facilities. The proposal
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          2  to change how we regulate health care facilities.

          3  The ambulatory health care facilities would replace

          4  medical offices, government-operated health centers,

          5  or independent out-of-hospital health facilities and

          6  health centers as they appear throughout the zoning

          7  resolution.

          8                 Ambulatory health care facilities

          9  would include physicians, dentists, psychiatrists,

         10  psychologists, social workers, physical therapists,

         11  et cetera, licensed by the State Department of

         12  Education.

         13                 The change would allow a broader

         14  array of health care providers to locate in

         15  residence districts, and is formally permitted under

         16  the current zoning. Recognizing the changed nature

         17  of providing health care and widespread location of

         18  such providers in these areas.

         19                 Hospitals and related facilities

         20  would remain listed in the zoning resolution without

         21  change.

         22                 Ambulatory health care facilities

         23  would be prohibited in R 1 and R 2 single-family

         24  detached home districts. Medical offices may

         25  presently locate in R 1 and R 2 districts as of
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          2  right up to 1,500 square feet of floor area or by

          3  special permit of the Board of Standards and Appeals

          4  up to 6,000.

          5                 These districts are the City's lowest

          6  density districts and should enjoy the most

          7  protection from Land Use impacts.

          8                 In other single - and two-family

          9  districts, which are R 3A, R 3X, R 31, R 4A, R 4B

         10  and R4 1, for those of you who are district

         11  officials, ambulatory health care facilities would

         12  be limited to 1,500 square feet of floor area as of

         13  right, and 10,000 square feet of floor area by

         14  special permit of the Board of Standards and

         15  Appeals.

         16                 There are no such limitations on the

         17  amount of floor area for any of these uses under the

         18  current zoning.

         19                 Proposed change would limit Land Use

         20  impacts while permitting the location of

         21  neighborhood serving facilities. Ambulatory health

         22  care facilities, where permitted, would be allowed

         23  to locate on any floor in a building that does not

         24  contain residences.

         25                 In buildings containing residences,
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          2  such facilities limited to locations below the first

          3  floor story ceiling, allowed on the second story

          4  only when accesses from outside or directly from a

          5  portion of the facility located on the ground floor.

          6  You can't walk through the building to get to it.

          7                 The proposed rules will give

          8  additional flexibility to ambulatory health care

          9  facilities, compared to existing location within

         10  this building regulations for medical offices or

         11  group medical centers, which are generally limited

         12  to the first floor.

         13                 Other categories of health care

         14  facilities have no restrictions on location within a

         15  building, and medical office buildings with two or

         16  more floors are widely found in residents districts.

         17                 These regulations will provide

         18  adequate opportunities to locate ambulatory health

         19  care facilities, by separating residences from

         20  facilities that share a building.

         21                 Cellar space for ambulatory health

         22  care facilities would generate a parking

         23  requirement, which is new, unless that space was

         24  used exclusively for accessory uses, including

         25  storage.
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          2                 Under the current zoning rules, in

          3  commercial and manufacturing districts, community

          4  facility medical offices below the level of the

          5  first-story ceiling do not have a parking

          6  requirement. This proposal would apply the same

          7  parking requirement to ambulatory health care

          8  facilities as that which exists currently for

          9  professional offices in such districts.

         10                 The proposal also regulate houses of

         11  worship. Houses of worship would replace churches as

         12  presently listed in the resolution, better

         13  reflecting the City's diverse range of religious

         14  institutions.

         15                 Houses of worship would continued to

         16  be allowed to locate in all residential and

         17  commercial districts in which they are allowed

         18  presently.

         19                 As of right, in R 1 through R 10, C 1

         20  through C 6 and C 8 districts, houses of worship

         21  would be permitted as-of-right, rather than by

         22  special permit in M 1 districts, to make it easier

         23  for them to locate in areas that are generally more

         24  isolated from residents.

         25                 Regulation for adult establishments
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          2  in M 1 districts would be adjusted to reflect the

          3  potential for new houses of worship, by prohibiting

          4  adult uses from locating within 100 feet of the new

          5  houses of worship in those M 1 zones.

          6                 The current minimum buffer of 500

          7  feet would remain for existing houses of worship in

          8  M 1 districts and for houses of worship located in

          9  other districts.

         10                 Parking requirements for houses of

         11  worship would be based on persons' rated capacity of

         12  the largest room of assembly in a house of worship,

         13  rather than the current standard of fixed seats.

         14  Often few or no parking spaces are provided because

         15  the House of Worship is designed without fixed

         16  seating, relying instead on movable chairs. The

         17  facilities serve a large number of persons arriving

         18  by automobile, as is often the case in low-density

         19  residents districts. Traffic congestion and illegal

         20  parking may result.

         21                 This change would result in a better

         22  match between the demand a facility creates for

         23  off-street parking and the amount of parking

         24  provided.

         25                 Parking would be required in R 1
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          2  through R 3 districts at a space for one space per

          3  ten persons rated capacity. In R 4 and R 5 districts

          4  at one space per 15 persons rated capacity.

          5                 In C 1 and C 2 districts mapped

          6  within R 1 through R 5 districts, at the same ratio

          7  required in the underlying residents district.

          8                 And in commercial and manufacturing

          9  districts that presently have a parking requirement

         10  of one space per ten or 15 fixed seats, these

         11  parking requirements are comparable to those of

         12  other community facility places of assembly in the

         13  same district.

         14                 Current parking requirements would be

         15  eliminated in R 6, R 7 1 and R 7 B districts, and in

         16  C 1 and C 2 districts mapped within R 6 through R 10

         17  districts, and in commercial districts with the

         18  parking requirement presently one space per 26

         19  seats. These districts are more typically mapped

         20  near transit and where such limited or no off-street

         21  parking is required.

         22                 Other changes would provide

         23  flexibility for houses of worship to satisfy the

         24  parking requirements. These changes would allow

         25  houses of worship located in residence districts to
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          2  provide for quiet off-street parking on separate

          3  zoning lots as-of-right within 600 feet of the house

          4  of worship, or 1,000 feet by BSA special permit.

          5  Shared parking would be permitted with other

          6  non-residential uses as-of-right within 600 feet of

          7  the house of worship, or within 1,000 feet by BSA

          8  special permit.

          9                 The shared parking would be limited

         10  to 25 percent of the required parking for the other

         11  use and could increase after review with the

         12  Commissioner of Buildings that more parking is

         13  available.

         14                 A new BSA special permit would allow

         15  a proportion or reduction of required parking based

         16  on a finding that the house of worship is used in

         17  such a way as to reduce the demand for on-site

         18  parking.

         19                 It's also going to affect the

         20  community facility ratio in C 1 and C 2 districts

         21  when they're mapped within R 3 2 districts.

         22                 To provide alternative locations for

         23  ambulatory health care facilities, near the single -

         24  and two-family districts, the maximum permitted

         25  floor area of community facility buildings, or
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          2  portions used for both commercial and facility uses,

          3  will be increased to 2.0 from 1.0 in R 3 2

          4  commercial overlay districts.

          5                 The parking requirement for

          6  ambulatory health care facilities located on the

          7  second floor, would be the same as that for

          8  ambulatory health care facilities located in R 3 2

          9  districts, one space for every 400 square feet of

         10  floor area.

         11                 Rear yard requirements. Under zoning

         12  regulations, R 3 through R 10 districts, community

         13  facilities may build within a required 30 foot rear

         14  yard one story up to a maximum 23 feet in height. No

         15  such building within a required rear yard is

         16  permitted in R 1 and R 2 districts for any community

         17  facility use.

         18                 Building in a required yard may

         19  affect light and air to adjoining residence and the

         20  rear yard views of the block interior. The proposal

         21  would extend the current prohibitions on building in

         22  a required rear yard in R 1 and R 2 districts to all

         23  other single - and two-family districts.

         24                 In all other residential districts,

         25  libraries, museums, not-for-profit institutions with
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          2  or without sleeping accommodations, nursing homes,

          3  group homes, ambulatory health care centers and

          4  other community facility use would be prohibited

          5  from building within the required rear yard at

          6  locations beyond 100 feet from any wide street.

          7                 However, schools, which include day

          8  care centers, houses of worship, houses and

          9  universities, hospitals and related facilities,

         10  would continue to be governed by the current rules,

         11  allowing rear yard construction in other than single

         12  and two-family residence districts.

         13                 This would recognize both the special

         14  legal protections accorded to certain community

         15  facilities, as whether the core community interest

         16  in facility and the growths and modernization of

         17  critical institutions.

         18                 Finally, parking lots with ten or

         19  more spaces in R 1 to R 5 districts would be

         20  screened by required planting. Under current

         21  regulations such lots could be screened by a wall or

         22  a fence. The proposed regulation would require

         23  screening that better reflects the character of

         24  these areas.

         25                 It wasn't brief, but that's it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: It's easy to see

          3  why the entire document is 100 pages long. If I can

          4  sum up, if it's possible, that basically these

          5  changes, as it relates to religious institutions and

          6  medical offices, will help preserve the quality of

          7  life in low-rise residential districts, and address

          8  some of the abuses that have come up over the years;

          9  is that a correct assumption?

         10                 MS. BENJAMIN: Yes.

         11                 MR. WEIL: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Questions from

         13  Committee members.

         14                 Council Member Quinn.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         16                 First, I just want to congratulate

         17  the Chair of the Subcommittee, Council Member

         18  Avella, for this proposal that we have here today. I

         19  think in literally our first or second Zoning

         20  Subcommittee meeting, Council Member Avella said

         21  that this is going to be a priority, and here we are

         22  with a proposal. So, I just want to really applaud

         23  him and Gail and the other members of the staff in

         24  City Planning for all their hard work on this issue.

         25                 I think what we have before us today
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          2  is definitely going to be when it goes through the

          3  whole process of something that's going to be very

          4  helpful to many of the neighborhoods in the City who

          5  have suffered the perhaps not necessarily thought

          6  through when this was created impacts of community

          7  facilities, and I think it's going to make a big

          8  difference in a lot of neighborhoods.

          9                 Some of the community facilities,

         10  that said, and I really want to be clear in

         11  appreciating this work and congratulating this work,

         12  that said a lot of the community facilities that are

         13  in my district and in other parts of Manhattan are

         14  not necessarily those that are the main focus of the

         15  item before us today, and a lot of the problems that

         16  we've suffered in Lower Manhattan as it relates to

         17  community facilities tends to be from other types of

         18  institutions, not necessarily religious or smaller,

         19  you know, doctors' or dentists' offices.

         20                 So, that said, I wanted to kind of

         21  ask what the thinking was on the future of community

         22  facility reform and what the next step in addition

         23  to this terrific proposal are going to be, you know,

         24  that might focus more on some of the issues that

         25  were raised by folks in Manhattan or in Lower
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          2  Manhattan around Universities and larger health

          3  facilities?

          4                 MS. BENJAMIN: Well, as we said, this

          5  is a first step, and we'd like to get this one

          6  through the process before we move into step number

          7  two. So, I'm not sure how we get to the next step.

          8  We're fully intending to look at other things, but

          9  we're really concentrating on this right now.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: How long, and

         11  you may have said this, how long is the process for

         12  this proposal?

         13                 MS. BENJAMIN: This, as you know, is a

         14  lengthy process. If this proposal is approved, it

         15  would allow us to file an application jointly with

         16  City Planning.

         17                 Based on that application, we could

         18  then jointly conduct an environmental review. And

         19  our estimate at this point in time is that the

         20  environmental review would take approximately six

         21  months, perhaps more.

         22                 Once the environmental review was

         23  completed, and the application being complete by the

         24  Department, it would in fact be certified and be

         25  able to start the official review process. It would
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          2  be certified and it would go to all the community

          3  boards, for up to 60 days, to the borough boards and

          4  the Borough Presidents for up to 30 additional days,

          5  to the City Planning Commission for up to 60 days,

          6  and then it would -- it's true, Sandy does remind me

          7  that since this is text, there is actually no

          8  required time, but in general it might look like 60

          9  days, although it's not required to. And then it

         10  would finally come back to the Council for adoption

         11  of a text for up to 50 days.

         12                 So, we're talking about a fairly

         13  lengthy process with a lot of opportunity for both

         14  review, comment and for fine tuning and change.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: You know,

         16  whenever you do one of those calendars, I feel like

         17  we need to go to cartoon, you know, when the

         18  calendar flips forward. At the end I'm like, what

         19  day were we? So, it's a long Land Use process.

         20                 MS. BENJAMIN: Absolutely.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Well, I hope as

         22  we get over some of the bigger time thresholds in

         23  the process that we could start looking at the other

         24  issues, Manhattan issues.

         25                 MS. BENJAMIN: I would certainly be,

                                                            25

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  with my staff, happy to sit down with you and get

          3  your thinking about it and start looking at perhaps

          4  a preliminary program of what we would want to look

          5  at.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: That would be

          7  great. And I think having the experience you all

          8  just went through to look back on and guide us will

          9  be very helpful and will make our efforts, you know,

         10  on round two, and hopefully for everybody's sake

         11  there won't have to be a round three, but what

         12  you've all done will make our work on round two much

         13  more effective and faster. So, again, thank you for

         14  your work on this and thank you for the willingness

         15  to move forward and look at the other issues that

         16  are still out there, and I'm going to assume that

         17  that willingness is also present from City Planning?

         18                 MR. WEIL: Yes, it is.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Great. Perfect

         20  day in government today. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: At least on the

         22  first item, and I would also say from my perspective

         23  that I am committed to moving on to other stages,

         24  because it is an important issue and much more needs

         25  to be done.

                                                            26

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you. And

          3  I just want to say I know the Chair of the

          4  Subcommittee and the Chair of the full Committee and

          5  Gail and also the staff of City Planning have spent

          6  a lot of time actually talking to folks who work a

          7  lot in my district in Manhattan and they certainly

          8  recognize that there is that willingness and we very

          9  much appreciate that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         11  McMahon.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chairman, and I want to join in with Council

         14  Member Quinn on commending you and Chairwoman Katz,

         15  as well as the Land Use Division of the City Council

         16  and the office of Amanda Burden and City Planning

         17  for grappling with this issue. I represent a

         18  predominantly residential area district, this is one

         19  of the things I think that, one of the -- we have a

         20  lot of things that infuriates the people regarding

         21  planning but this is certainly in the top couple of

         22  three, because it seems that there is no

         23  cohesiveness to how medical offices get cited and

         24  how they come into existence and parking and all

         25  those rules are very good.
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          2                 I just want to ask a few questions.

          3  When we come to the end of this road, and we vote on

          4  a text amendment, facilities that exist now, of

          5  course, would be grandfathered in; is that correct?

          6                 MS. BENJAMIN: That's correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay. And the

          8  other part of this is the facilities that we're not

          9  dealing with. Can you give me an example of a couple

         10  of the other things that are defined as community

         11  facilities under the zoning text?

         12                 MS. BENJAMIN: You mean other than

         13  houses of worship, schools, medical facilities.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: In other

         15  words what are the things that we're not dealing

         16  with under the community facility definition or

         17  heading?

         18                 MR. WEIL: Non-profit institutions.

         19  Well, everybody is being dealt with at least in some

         20  regard, because as Gail points out to me, we're

         21  regulating the rail yards. So, there are greater

         22  protections in all residential neighborhoods, from

         23  virtually all community facilities. All community

         24  facilities are being affected to some degree. There

         25  are more regulations that relate to medical offices,

                                                            28

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  more regulations that relate to houses of worship in

          3  this proposal, but everything is affected to at

          4  least some degree.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: To what

          6  degree? Just regarding the rear yard requirement?

          7                 MR. WEIL: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: So, what are

          9  the other things that we're not touching on? At

         10  schools; what else comes under the community

         11  facility heading?

         12                 MR. WEIL: Non-profit institutions.

         13                 MS. BENJAMIN: Non-profit museums.

         14                 MR. WEIL: Museums.

         15                 MS. BENJAMIN: Hospitals.

         16                 MR. WEIL: Maybe we could answer,

         17  probably the issues that you'll probably hear

         18  testimony from, the issue which is probably most

         19  controversial is that community facilities get more

         20  floor area in most districts than comparable

         21  residential buildings, and that is not affected by

         22  this proposal. That's probably the biggest thing

         23  that's not being discussed.

         24                 MR. HORNICK: (Not identified for the

         25  record.) It's not an issue of the type of community
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          2  facilities, but rather really issues relating to

          3  bulk.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: To bulk?

          5                 MR. HORNICK: Other issues relating to

          6  the bulk of community facilities. The increased FAR,

          7  the more flexible envelope controls, things like

          8  that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay, thank

         10  you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chair. And let me just join my colleagues in

         13  thanking you, and the Land Use Chair and Gail, for

         14  some issues that are so big that you almost just

         15  don't know where to jump in and get started, and

         16  we've all done a commendable job of really taking a

         17  huge issue and beginning to do great work on it.

         18                 I just wanted to ask a quick question

         19  about community facilities in manufacturing

         20  districts, and if you could walk through what the

         21  thinking is behind the changes to that.

         22                 And if you can also address, as you

         23  know, we have a dwindling manufacturing base in the

         24  City, an area to actually put manufacturing or

         25  industrial work is becoming scarce; how do you think
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          2  this will impact that? Well, for starters, there you

          3  go.

          4                 MS. BENJAMIN: As you know, right now

          5  there is a special permit available to site

          6  community facilities in an M1 district.

          7                 In looking at the changes that we

          8  propose, we also thought that we needed to present

          9  opportunities for community facilities that would

         10  allow them to more easily locate in areas that were

         11  more appropriate perhaps, had bigger parcels of land

         12  that would be available, where parking could be

         13  provided.

         14                 In that vain, in taking a look at all

         15  the areas, we arrived at the fact that the special

         16  permit was really not necessary, and that community

         17  facilities could be easily accommodated in the M1

         18  areas, which are intended as a buffer zone to start

         19  with between residential and manufacturing, so the

         20  types of uses in M1s are somewhat more constrained

         21  than the M2 or M3, and they are more protective. So,

         22  we thought that that would be a good match and a

         23  good opportunity to direct this kind of development.

         24                 MR. HORNICK: But also this is an area

         25  that you asked about, things that are not being
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          2  addressed, earlier City Planning had discussed the

          3  possibility of allowing a much broader range of

          4  community facilities to locate as-of-right in

          5  manufacturing districts. But this proposal only

          6  discusses locating houses of worship.

          7                 It's important to note that we get

          8  several applications a year for the location of a

          9  house of worship in manufacturing districts. We have

         10  never turned one down. So, the special permit

         11  becomes perfunctory and doesn't make sense. It's a

         12  cost of business for the church, it doesn't really

         13  help anyone.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: So the special

         15  permit would remain for the other?

         16                 MR. HORNICK: Correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Okay, thank

         18  you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         20  Comrie.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chair.

         23                 I also want to commend Chairman

         24  Avella and the Land Use staff for putting together

         25  and focusing on this important issue regarding
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          2  community facilities, especially in Queens and in

          3  other boroughs, and I know that I've gotten a lot of

          4  feedback from constituents all around my district

          5  regarding community facilities and I want to

          6  congratulate Chairman Avella, Chairman Katz and the

          7  Land Use staff for taking on this complex issue and

          8  a difficult issue in a City that has areas that

          9  would like to see reclassification either upward or

         10  downward, depending on the context of the community

         11  and how the community likes to plan in the future.

         12                 And I have a couple of questions, and

         13  number one is, what is the role of the community

         14  planning boards in this new process with community

         15  facilities planning?

         16                 MS. BENJAMIN: I'm not sure whether

         17  you mean the role in the adoption of?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Not in the

         19  adoption of the law, but will their role in the

         20  adoption or classification, will they be able to

         21  have a role in adoption of classification, or will

         22  their role be the same as it is now?

         23                 MS. BENJAMIN: Their role is the same

         24  as it is now. Community facilities by and large are

         25  as of right in most of these districts, and they
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          2  will continue to be as of right, however, the manner

          3  in which they operate will be changed somewhat, but

          4  they will continue to be as of right.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, as of

          6  right due to the existing zoning within the property

          7  area.

          8                 MS. BENJAMIN: That's correct.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But if a

         10  building has to apply for a waiver, for whatever

         11  reason, how would that move into the process?

         12                 MS. BENJAMIN: The waiver that we

         13  spoke about for parking, for instance?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         15                 MR. WEIL: There are several things

         16  which are today as-of-right. For example, in the

         17  single - and two-family home districts where medical

         18  officers can go in as of right today, they'll be

         19  limited to 1,500 square feet as-of-right. Only small

         20  ones could go in. Anything larger than that up to

         21  10,000 square feet would be a Board of Standards and

         22  Appeals special permit, which by charter goes to the

         23  Community Board for 60 days.

         24                 So, there are things like that where

         25  they will be going to the community board for
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          2  comment which do not now go for the community board

          3  for comment.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. So, is

          5  it possible that rear yards or the rear of the yards

          6  for facilities could be paved over to allow public

          7  housing, I mean to allow public parking, which would

          8  impact on residential neighborhoods, according to

          9  your plan?

         10                 Say you want to build a medical

         11  facility and it's as-of-right? Could they now put

         12  the parking in the back or abutting a residential

         13  home, at the back of the yard?

         14                 MR. HORNICK: In the same situations

         15  which they can do that now they can do that in the

         16  future.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: All right.

         18                 MR. HORNICK: Because we're not

         19  changing those regulations.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You're not

         21  changing that, okay.

         22                 And also, I'm pleased to see --

         23                 MR. HORNICK: The one change is that

         24  we're adding a screening requirement, so there's an

         25  additional landscaping requirement for a group
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          2  facility in a residential district.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And that would

          4  be a requirement in the --

          5                 MS. BENJAMIN: Yes.

          6                 MR. HORNICK: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

          8                 And the parking for houses of

          9  worship, I see you've moved it so that it would

         10  apply to only the facilities largest room, including

         11  a subdividable room. Current waivers would be

         12  retained. How are you going to make that

         13  determination on what is current, what is still

         14  pending? Because a lot of people are still doing

         15  temporary waivers, or temporary statuses because

         16  they haven't had this resolved; will this help do

         17  some resolution for parking?

         18                 MR. WEIL: The law takes effect when

         19  it's adopted ultimately by the Council, and

         20  approximately, assuming things go according to the

         21  schedule Gail laid out, in about a year.

         22                 Then applies, the question is, the

         23  waivers that it refers to here is that very small

         24  institutions, they require very little parking,

         25  waive out of the parking requirement. So, basically
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          2  in an R1 to 3 districts, I think it's 142, capacity

          3  of 142 less, basically like a storefront.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: A hundred and

          5  forty-two persons?

          6                 MR. WEIL: Yes. Yes. And a very small

          7  one would waive out.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. But what

          9  about facilities, churches that are dealing with

         10  five to 800 or 800 to 1,000 people?

         11                 MS. BENJAMIN: They're not eligible

         12  for the waiver currently.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, they're

         14  not eligible for the waiver. Under no circumstances

         15  under the new law would they be eligible for a

         16  waiver?

         17                 MR. HORNICK: They could apply to the

         18  BSA for this special permit that's in here, but

         19  there's no automatic as-of-right waiver.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         21                 MR. HORNICK: That of course would go

         22  through a process at the community board.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. I just

         24  want to be clear because those are the things that

         25  are going to come up now.
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          2                 Now, also with siting of City

          3  facilities, would they be easier under this new

          4  plan, or siting of, say, homeless shelter or other

          5  facilities? Would that be more complex under this

          6  plan, or would it make this easier?

          7                 MS. BENJAMIN: I would say the siting

          8  of City facilities would be unaffected.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Unaffected,

         10  okay.

         11                 All right. Well, I'll save my, okay

         12  --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         14  Katz.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Hi. And thank

         16  you for testifying today and clarifying some of the

         17  new issues when it comes to the community

         18  facilities, and just to reiterate what Council

         19  Member Quinn said and Chairman Avella I know agreed

         20  with, which was that now that we have this as a

         21  beginning for medical facilities or may I say

         22  ambulatory D and T health care facilities, and the

         23  churches and the houses of worship, I do believe the

         24  future negotiations that the Chairman has and the

         25  Committee has with the Administration, who by the
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          2  way from the beginning Amanda Burden and the

          3  Administration showed their desire and their

          4  commitment to making the community facilities law a

          5  lot more community friendly. So, I want to also

          6  thank them for that.

          7                 So, there was nothing that I don't

          8  believe we needed to push them on and they showed a

          9  desire.

         10                 I want to clarify what Council Member

         11  Comrie was talking about. Under R 1 and R 2, and

         12  correct me when I'm wrong, there's no community

         13  facilities for ambulatory D and T health care

         14  facilities allowed, period.

         15                 MR. HORNICK: That's correct.

         16                 MS. BENJAMIN: That's correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Now --

         18                 MS. BENJAMIN: However --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Go ahead.

         20                 MS. BENJAMIN: Home occupations are

         21  permitted.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.

         23                 MS. BENJAMIN: So, if you are a

         24  physician who have an office, your office in your

         25  home --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: In your home.

          3                 MS. BENJAMIN: -- You are still

          4  permitted to have your office in your home.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay, and that's

          6  still as of right?

          7                 MS. BENJAMIN: That's correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And there's no

          9  special permit, but it has to be you're living there

         10  and it's in your home.

         11                 MS. BENJAMIN: Correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay. For R 3

         13  and R 4, because you were talking about the fact

         14  that the floor area ratio in community facilities

         15  tend to be larger and that this really didn't affect

         16  that. My understanding is for R 3 and R 4, it does

         17  affect it somewhat.

         18                 MS. BENJAMIN: Only for the commercial

         19  overlays over an R 3 --

         20                 MR. HORNICK: No. It's the medical

         21  offices in the single - and two-family districts

         22  which are R 3 and R 4 districts.

         23                 MS. BENJAMIN: Right.

         24                 MR. HORNICK: There would be a new

         25  size limitation on the medical facility.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So the

          3  limitation in size has gotten smaller for community

          4  facilities under this law?

          5                 MR. HORNICK: In this instance, yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: In this instance

          7  for ambulatory D and T health care facilities which

          8  is one of the larger issues in the other boroughs, I

          9  should say.

         10                 MR. HORNICK: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Great. I just

         12  wanted to clarify that for the record, because

         13  there's a lot of folks out here that are very

         14  interested in that topic, and I know that at least

         15  in my neighborhood that is one of the most largest

         16  concerns that constituents have.

         17                 In parking for houses of worship, now

         18  instead of being able to have removable seats, we do

         19  it under capacity, and just to clarify for everyone

         20  the discussions that occurred, the capacity is done

         21  by how?

         22                 MR. HORNICK: Rated capacity is

         23  established by the Department of Buildings. It's a

         24  very, it's sort of an esoteric and complicated

         25  formula having to do with the width of exits, the
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          2  number of exits, the width of the stairways.

          3                 It works out to about eight to ten

          4  feet square feet per person.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So basically

          6  now, though, the amount of parking space that one

          7  needs in order to build the houses of worship under

          8  the community facilities will be based on the

          9  capacity that is established by the Department of

         10  Buildings when the facility is built.

         11                 MR. HORNICK: Correct.

         12                 MS. BENJAMIN: Correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Basically.

         14                 Thank you very much for all the work

         15  that you and the Committee and the Chair and

         16  Commissioner Burden has done on this effort. Thank

         17  you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         19  questions from Committee members?

         20                 Thank you for the presentation. We

         21  will now move on to the public hearing aspect of

         22  this item.

         23                 I will ask, I will call speakers up

         24  in terms of panels three at a time. I will ask that

         25  they limit themselves to three minutes each. We have
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          2  40 to 50 speakers for the entire agenda today, so we

          3  would like to get out of here before 5:00.

          4                 So, I ask that you please be brief as

          5  possible, and if a previous speaker has said

          6  something, try and not repeat the same thing over

          7  and over again.

          8                 The first panel on this item will be

          9  Irving Poy from the Queens Borough President's

         10  Office; Simeon Bankoff from the Historic Districts

         11  Council; Carolyn Greenberg from CIVITAS.

         12                 MR. POY: Good morning. My name is

         13  Irving Poy. I am here on behalf of Queens Borough

         14  President Helen Marshall.

         15                 The Borough President applauds the

         16  efforts of the City Council and the Department of

         17  City Planning to address some of the difficult

         18  issues that have arisen with the siting of community

         19  facilities in our neighborhoods.

         20                 There is no question as to the value

         21  and importance of the medical services, educational

         22  opportunities or spiritual nurture that are provided

         23  by community facilities. Community facilities are

         24  very much needed to provide these invaluable

         25  services.
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          2                 Unfortunately, in recent years,

          3  reaction to proposals for community facilities,

          4  particularly in lower density areas has been

          5  suspicion and opposition.

          6                 The reasons for the negative reaction

          7  is that many of the regulations were written at a

          8  time when community facilities were more geared

          9  toward servicing the immediate neighborhoods. Today

         10  many of these facilities have an extended service

         11  area during patients, students or worshippers from

         12  the entire New York metropolitan area.

         13                 The result is that many once quiet

         14  neighborhoods of one - and two-family homes are

         15  experiencing a glut of parked cars, traffic and

         16  other inconveniences on the days when the community

         17  facility next door is in full operation.

         18                 While the services provided are

         19  invaluable, the space peace and quiet that

         20  homeowners thought they were investing in are

         21  equally invaluable.

         22                 These text changes have been asked

         23  for and amended by a Citywide coalition of

         24  neighborhood groups and home-owners interested in

         25  maintaining the quality of life in communities where
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          2  they've invested their life savings.

          3                 The proposed zoning text changes go a

          4  long way to address many of the negative parking,

          5  bulk and use issues eroding the quality of life in

          6  our lower density areas.

          7                 However, one of the zoning proposals

          8  needs further consideration and refinement. Section

          9  22-21 proposes a Board of Standards and Appeals

         10  special permit that will allow ambulatory,

         11  diagnostic or treatment health care facilities

         12  listed in use group 4A up to a maximum of 10,000

         13  square feet of floor area in the R 3A, R 3X, R3 1, R

         14  4A, R 4B, and R-1 districts.

         15                 Ten-thousand square feet community

         16  facilities in these districts would be out of

         17  character in these neighborhoods where the allowable

         18  residential floor area ratios range from .5 to .9.

         19                 The maximum floor area allowable

         20  under this special permit should be reduced to a

         21  number that is more consistent with the maximum bulk

         22  allowable for residential homes in these districts.

         23                 All of the proposed zoning text

         24  changes will be closely scrutinized by all involved.

         25  While we are reviewing these proposed changes, we
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          2  must keep in mind that for most people the purchase

          3  of a home is the single largest expenditure they

          4  will ever make.

          5                 The purchase of a home is an

          6  investment in a neighborhood made only after much

          7  consideration of an area's build character and

          8  expectations of the quality of life.

          9                 The Borough President looks forward

         10  to continued dialogue between all affected parties.

         11  The discussion during the review process will result

         12  in findings that will restore the balance between

         13  community facility and host neighborhoods and

         14  ultimately approval of the long, thought out

         15  community facility tech changes.

         16                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         17  speak before this Committee.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         19                 Next speaker.

         20                 MR. BANKOFF: Good morning, Council

         21  members. I'm Simeon Bankoff, Executive Director of

         22  the Historic District Council. I also am speaking

         23  before you in my capacity as the co-convenor of the

         24  Citywide Coalition for Community Facility Reform.

         25                 The Citywide Coalition for Community

                                                            46

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  Facility Reform is a coalition of over 125 groups

          3  from across the five boroughs dedicated to reforming

          4  the community facility goal, the community facility

          5  text. As such, I can probably say between HDC and

          6  the Citywide Coalition that I represent, probably

          7  over two - or three-hundred groups, all of whom are

          8  thrilled to see this important first step happening,

          9  with regard to reforming this text, and would like

         10  to applaud both Chair Avella and the Council staff

         11  on taking this important first step.

         12                 As such, however, the Coalition would

         13  like to be a little more general in terms of our

         14  goals for community facility reform. We feel that

         15  the current community facility provision have, as

         16  many people know, a negative impact on our

         17  neighborhood character. We feel they have

         18  inappropriate and inconsistent definitions, they

         19  create a disproportionate bulk, they create

         20  oversaturation for our City's valuable

         21  neighborhoods, and, finally, that they undermine the

         22  zoning resolution's essential effectiveness in

         23  creating a as-of-right status that goes against the

         24  essential rationality over the planning process.

         25                 We are thrilled to see that this is
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          2  now being addressed, and we applaud the Council

          3  member, the Council and the City Planning Commission

          4  on this first step. We look forward to testifying

          5  specifically about it during the ULURP process.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          8                 Next speaker.

          9                 MS. GREENBERG: Good morning. My name

         10  is Carolyn Greenberg. I am Executive Vice President

         11  of CIVITAS.

         12                 Chair Avella, members of the

         13  Committee, good morning.

         14                 CIVITAS citizens incorporated a union

         15  of citizens on the Upper East Side in East Harlem,

         16  has been advocating change to the community facility

         17  regulations of the New York City zoning resolution

         18  for more than ten years.

         19                 We are pleased to learn that the City

         20  Council and the Department of City Planning have

         21  finally agreed to take some small steps regarding

         22  doctors' office, parking requirements, and houses of

         23  worship and low-rise zoning districts.

         24                 Among the concerns of CIVITAS are the

         25  provisions relating to rear yard intrusions and the
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          2  additional bulk granted to community facilities,

          3  especially when located in residential midblocks. In

          4  addition, community facilities proposed for the R-8B

          5  midblock sites in Community Board 8 are permitted to

          6  have an FAR of 5.1, whereas in all other R-8B

          7  districts, the allowable FAR is 4.0. It should be

          8  consistent Citywide.

          9                 Although this proposal does not

         10  address the concerns of CIVITAS and many other civic

         11  organizations, it is the beginning of much needed

         12  reform.

         13                 This is an action that is long

         14  overdue and we look forward to participating in the

         15  development of new regulations that will better

         16  serve the residents of our City.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions by

         19  Committee members?

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 Next panel. Pat Dolan from Queens

         22  Civic Congress; Corey Bearak from Queens Civic

         23  Congress; and Tyler Cassell, North Flushing Civic

         24  Association.

         25                 MS. DOLAN: Good morning. My name is
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          2  Patricia Dolan. I'm Executive Vice President of the

          3  Queens Civic Congress, a coalition of 105 civic,

          4  community and neighborhood-based organizations,

          5  representing tenants, home-owners, cooperative

          6  owners and just plain residents all over the Borough

          7  of Queens.

          8                 First of all, and aside from my

          9  prepared text, I would like to tell you how happy I

         10  am to be here this morning.

         11                 I wanted to say before I get started

         12  with my statement how happy I am to be here this

         13  morning, and how grateful we are to Chairman Avella

         14  for his faithful and persistent pursuit of this text

         15  document.

         16                 First of all, I would like to point

         17  out, in Queens neighborhoods, medical offices,

         18  clinics, outpatient treatment centers march in lock

         19  step down residential blocks on blocks near

         20  hospitals and medical centers.

         21                 Medical facilities in homes may also

         22  deprive the City of New York of revenue in these

         23  difficult times. They occupy one - and two-family

         24  houses without a change in the certificate of

         25  occupancy that would classify premises as class 4.
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          2                 If $1,000 were paid in taxes on the

          3  property, the real tax ought to be $5,000 or more

          4  every year. That adds up.

          5                 The Queens Civic Congress is pleased

          6  that the Council and the Department of City Planning

          7  are jointly considering the text change that will

          8  address some of the most troublesome affects that

          9  burgeoning community facilities have particularly on

         10  low-density, low-rise residential neighborhoods.

         11                 The draft text became available only

         12  a few weeks ago -- few days ago, leaving us scant

         13  time for careful studied analysis and consideration.

         14                 The Civic Congress recognizes this

         15  document becomes the basis for discussion as the

         16  City Charter mandated process where zoning text

         17  begins.

         18                 The Queens Civic Congress will offer

         19  detailed and comprehensive comments in consultation

         20  with the Congress' more than 105 member

         21  organizations over the next few weeks.

         22                 I would like to comment for a moment

         23  on houses of worship. In some of our neighborhoods,

         24  concentrations of houses of worship deprive their

         25  neighbors of privacy, peace and quiet, that made
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          2  them choose their homes and invest in Queens in the

          3  first place.

          4                 The implacable developments of these

          5  facilities, which sometimes have little relation to

          6  the communities in which they are situated, are

          7  inextricably bound up with their neighbors' quality

          8  of life, and you'll hear more of that from my

          9  colleague Tyler Cassell in a few minutes.

         10                 Finally, we'd like to offer a couple

         11  of very specific comments having to do with the BSA

         12  special permits, which in effect is a 10,000 square

         13  foot bulk bonus in lower density contextually zoned

         14  districts is troubling, and we urge you to

         15  reconsider it.

         16                 As the borough with the most

         17  contextually rezoned neighborhood, the Queens Civic

         18  Congress is acutely aware of the impact that this

         19  could have on these communities that have just gone

         20  through the arduous process of rezoning themselves,

         21  specifically in areas where they've rezoned

         22  themselves to be one - and two-family neighborhoods,

         23  and only by virtue of the width of their lot, are

         24  they not more restrictively rezoned.

         25                 The Civic Congress urges the Council
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          2  to take this first long, overdue step in referring

          3  the regulation of community facilities.

          4                 The Congress looks forward to working

          5  with the Council and the Department of City Planning

          6  in advancing this first text change, modified as

          7  recommended by New Yorkers.  We anticipate working

          8  with the Council and the Department in achieving far

          9  more reaching reforms in the future.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 MR. BEARAK: My name is Corey Bearak,

         12  and I also serve as an Executive Vice President at

         13  the Queens Civic Congress, and we're both here and

         14  Tyler to, first of all, express thanks to --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Please use the

         16  other microphone.

         17                 MR. BEARAK: The other one? Okay.

         18                 Again, my name is Corey Bearak, and

         19  I'm also an Executive Vice President at the Queens

         20  Civic Congress, and I'm here both with Pat and Tyler

         21  to, first of all, commend the Council for working

         22  and moving on this issue. In my prior life working

         23  in the Council, you know, over 20 years ago, is how

         24  long this issue goes back, particularly with respect

         25  to the medical facilities, so it is gratifying to
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          2  see a brand new Council make this a priority and get

          3  something moving in its very first term, and we

          4  commend you on that.

          5                 I just want to reiterate in the R-3,

          6  R-4 single-family and two-family districts we would

          7  be very careful about the siting of these facilities

          8  and we may want to rethink as this process evolves,

          9  particularly with the environmental review, in terms

         10  of the parking requirements. If you go through some

         11  of the neighborhoods that are R 3 and R 4, for a

         12  variety of reasons, the parking is much tighter on

         13  those districts, in those districts, and there may

         14  be, in many cases, the streets are a little bit

         15  narrower than a typical street that was more

         16  recently developed, I think we should be very

         17  attuned to that, and we may also want to look at the

         18  rear yard in terms of how much parking can be there

         19  and be very careful about the screening that goes on

         20  there as well. Because some facilities operate on a

         21  more nine to five basis that will be a particular

         22  concern as well.

         23                 And then in terms of the home use,

         24  home occupation piece, particularly on the medical

         25  facilities, I think the idea of the doctor who lives
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          2  in their home and practices out of their home, seems

          3  to be more the anomaly than the rule these days, and

          4  I think that's something that we ought to look at

          5  very carefully, particularly in the EIS to make it

          6  very clear that it's something that requires

          7  enforcement as well.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 Tyler.

         10                 MR. CASSELL: Yes, good morning. My

         11  name is Tyler Cassell. I'm the President of the

         12  North Flushing Civic Association, a 90-block area

         13  just north of Northern Boulevard in Flushing,

         14  Queens.

         15                 I want to first thank Councilman

         16  Avella, Councilwoman Katz, and the other Council

         17  members for giving us this opportunity and getting

         18  this far with the zoning text. We also thank City

         19  Planning.

         20                 Our civic area is mostly one-family

         21  homes in an R 2 zone. In the past 15 years we have

         22  seen sections of our community and other communities

         23  been taken over by the proliferation of community

         24  facilities.

         25                 Our quality of life has rapidly

                                                            55

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  deteriorated. We have seen many long-time neighbors

          3  panic, sell their homes, because a new public

          4  facility moved in next door.

          5                 We live in constant fear of who and

          6  what is going to buy the house next door when a "for

          7  sale" sign goes up.

          8                 These six-block maps near my home

          9  show a rapid takeover of public facilities, mostly

         10  religious use in nature.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Tyler, you're

         12  going to have to speak into the mic because the

         13  meeting is being recorded, so if you're too far away

         14  it won't be picked up.

         15                 MR. TYLER: These two maps near my

         16  home show the rapid takeover by public facilities,

         17  mostly religious use in nature.

         18                 The first map from 1990 show seven

         19  tax lots that were public facilities. The same

         20  six-block area in January of 2000, just ten years

         21  later, shows there were 41 tax lots that were public

         22  facilities.

         23                 Today, three years later, we can add

         24  another six to this figure, making the total 47.

         25  This shouldn't be allowed to happen.
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          2                 Most of this would have never

          3  happened if the 1961 zoning resolution had been

          4  based on parking, has based parking for religious

          5  use public facilities on building occupancy, rather

          6  than on the silly notion of fixed seating.

          7                 The fixed seating text has created a

          8  vacuum in our suburbs, allowing those in other

          9  towns, other cities, in invade our suburban

         10  communities and take advantage of this latent

         11  loophole.

         12                 In order to skirt the current seating

         13  requirements, these institutions use folding chairs

         14  or stack chairs.

         15                 Certainly the intent of the zoning

         16  resolution was not meant to make religious use

         17  institutions all by folding chairs.

         18                 Parking for all public facilities,

         19  including religious use public facilities must be

         20  based on occupancy, as does the building and fire

         21  codes.

         22                 This even makes more sense today

         23  since everybody drives to these facilities from

         24  other areas. Parking should be for one car only per

         25  spot to stop the current valet parked small lots
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          2  that fit 35 cars into a lot meant for 20.

          3                 The complimentary solution to the

          4  problem is for the City to open up some of the

          5  unused manufacturing and industrial zones, where

          6  there are warehouses laying fallow and unoccupied

          7  due to the shift in our economy to a service

          8  economy.

          9                 Larger religious use groups could

         10  easily settle there. It would solve the parking

         11  problem, and it would also solve the quality of life

         12  problem since there are no one-family homes next

         13  door.

         14                 I have such warehouses within the

         15  three blocks of this saturated area that could have

         16  been used instead at taking our precious homes away.

         17                 You may hear testimony today about

         18  this being a religious issue or a stand against

         19  religious rights that's not true.

         20                 Let's stay focused, the issue is

         21  solely about public facilities abiding by the same

         22  parking rules - occupancy is occupancy, parking is

         23  parking.

         24                 The work in regard to seating of

         25  public facilities still leaves a lot to be done.
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          2  Other issues such as bulk, that allows public

          3  facility to build up to its property line and size

          4  must also be addressed.

          5                 Six community boards in Queens have

          6  already adopted Land Use resolutions calling for

          7  other necessary zoning changes in regard to public

          8  facilities. This issue is really a Citywide issue,

          9  and must be addressed one piece at a time.

         10                 I urge you to vote for these proposed

         11  changes that will save some of our vanishing

         12  residential neighborhoods before it's too late.

         13                 We must stabilize our neighborhoods,

         14  we must find solutions to the problems that confront

         15  us, a vote for these changes says that you believe

         16  that we should level the playing field on the

         17  parking issue. We have confidence that the new City

         18  Council will do what's right and help us.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         20                 One of the things that I wanted to

         21  mention, and I believe I mentioned it in my opening

         22  statement, is that we would not be here today if it

         23  was not for all of the civic preservation groups in

         24  the City that have lobbied for this over a long

         25  period of time, but I did want to make special note,
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          2  Tyler, of all of the work that you've done.

          3                 The presentation that he just briefly

          4  made here, he has gone to almost every civic group,

          5  preservation group, and actually set up a meeting

          6  where he met with Commissioner Amanda Burden, and I

          7  don't think anything is more dramatic than the two

          8  diagrams which has showed over a ten-year period the

          9  difference between one residential community ten

         10  years ago, and what it is now, it's not a

         11  residential community, it's a community facilities

         12  neighborhood. And I thank you for that work and I

         13  thank everybody that's been here.

         14                 Council Member Katz has a question.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Just a very

         16  quick question for Ms. Dolan, if I can.

         17                 I'm looking at your -- and I just

         18  want to clarify it. I know you and I have had

         19  discussions on it already, but at the bottom of the

         20  page two, it talks about getting rid of the special

         21  permit for the 10,000 square foot bulk bonus in

         22  lower density. What is it you are suggesting?

         23                 MS. DOLAN: What we're suggesting is

         24  specifically the -- we are suggesting specifically

         25  that the low density zoning districts, the
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          2  contextual districts --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right.

          4                 MS. DOLAN: -- Such as your own

          5  neighborhood, was rezoned this past year --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Yes.

          7                 MS. DOLAN:-- Be exempted from this

          8  $10,000 bulk bonus, this 10,000 square foot.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: You want

         10  community facilities to be prohibited basically in

         11  one, two, three, four contextual zoning for 3 and 4.

         12                 MS. DOLAN: I wouldn't say 4, and I

         13  wouldn't necessarily say the R 3 2s. I would say the

         14  R 4 1, the R 4 2 and the R 4 B and A. These are the

         15  low-density contextual districts. Most of them are

         16  in fact one - and two-family house districts, but I

         17  think that should be specifically exempted. These

         18  are neighborhoods that have gone through great

         19  effort, gone through terribly daunting process, to

         20  get what they had hoped and expected was zoning

         21  provisions to protect themselves from

         22  over-development.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Basically

         24  prohibit like we did in R 1 and R 2?

         25                 MS. DOLAN: Exactly.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And can I assume

          3  that since --

          4                 MS. DOLAN: I'd like to note that many

          5  of these districts are zoned the way they are only

          6  because they don't qualify as R 1s and R 2s because

          7  of the widths of their districts, of the lots.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right.

          9                 And I assume that the Queens Civic

         10  Congress is happy with the houses of worship

         11  provision?

         12                 MS. DOLAN: I would say, I mean there

         13  are some issues here if we examine the draft text

         14  that we would like to be refined, but we're

         15  certainly happy to be here.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: There will be

         17  plenty of time.

         18                 MS. DOLAN: Yes, I figured that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 MS. DOLAN: Having been through an

         22  environmental assessment, I know how long it can

         23  take.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         25                 Next panel, Eliott Socci, Douglaston
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          2  Civic Association; Phil Konigsbert, Bay Terrace

          3  Community Alliance; Steve Strauss, Westsiders for a

          4  Viable Neighborhood.

          5                 MR. SOCCI: My name is Eliott Socci,

          6  I'm President of the Douglaston Civic Association.

          7                 On behalf of the Douglaston Civic

          8  Association, I would like to thank the public

          9  officials that work --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Could you put the

         11  microphone a little closer to your mouth, please?

         12                 MR. SOCCI: Thank you. I would like to

         13  thank the public officials that worked to develop

         14  the long overdue proposals that were announced

         15  today.

         16                 We recognize that this was a

         17  difficult and controversial issue to address. The

         18  proposals that were made today are urgently needed

         19  to protect the rights of homeowners throughout the

         20  City.

         21                 Although it is not everything we

         22  wanted and it is not everything we hoped for, it is

         23  a step in the right direction. You should be

         24  congratulated for having the courage of your

         25  convictions and remaining steadfast in working
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          2  towards this reform.

          3                 We recognize that difficulties lie

          4  ahead before the proposals become reality. The

          5  Douglaston Civic Association will support your

          6  efforts and will continue the campaign to protect

          7  residential communities from the excesses of

          8  community facilities. Let us know what we can do to

          9  help.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 MR. KONIGSBERG: Chairman and Council

         12  Member Avella, members of the City Council

         13  Subcommittee. Thank you for the opportunity to

         14  testify this morning.

         15                 My name is Phil Konigsberg, and I

         16  live in Bay Terrace, the Bay Terrace in Queens,

         17  Council Member, in Staten Island, which is the

         18  northeast Queens.

         19                 I am a member of the Board of

         20  Directors of Bay Terrace Housing Co-op, President of

         21  the Bay Terrace Community Alliance, the local civic

         22  association in the Bay Terrace area, and a member of

         23  Community Board 7. As you can see, I care about the

         24  community I live in, that's why I came down to City

         25  Hall this morning, to ask for changes in the way
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          2  community facilities are permitted to operate,

          3  locate and operate within a community without any

          4  community input.

          5                 A major concern of Bay Terrace, a

          6  residential community of approximately 6,000

          7  households, mostly co-ops and condominiums, adjacent

          8  to a major regional shopping center, is traffic

          9  congested and lack of parking.

         10                 We have seen a proliferation of

         11  medical facilities in the Bay Terrace community that

         12  has altered the character of our neighborhood.

         13                 This past week, a spokesperson for a

         14  group of medical professionals protested the

         15  Department of City Planning's Bay Terrace

         16  transportation studies' recommendations to improve

         17  the traffic flow of Belt Boulevard, the main

         18  north/south thoroughfare in Bay Terrace, because it

         19  would eliminate two parking spots for their

         20  patience.

         21                 Not only did they object to changes

         22  that were intended to improve the quality of life of

         23  the residents of our community, they show a strong

         24  interest in further changing the character of our

         25  neighborhood by having parking meters installed in
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          2  the immediate area in the medical facilities.

          3                 In addition, I understand that the

          4  same group of medical professionals are seeking to

          5  have a local street, 24th Avenue, become a one-way

          6  street that would have a negative impact on several

          7  hundred residents, would be forced to drive, in some

          8  cases, more than a half a mile out of their way when

          9  leaving their residences.

         10                 What I'm saying this morning, ladies

         11  and gentlemen, is we need to establish safeguards to

         12  our community by changing the present zoning laws to

         13  one required community review of new community

         14  facilities and to require these facilities to

         15  provide adequate off-street parking when they locate

         16  in our community.

         17                 I realize what I've just presented to

         18  you is an existing medical facility, but it's

         19  something that we are facing increasingly, and we

         20  need your help. Thank you so much for this day.

         21                 MR. STRAUSS: Good morning. My name is

         22  Steve Strauss. I'm a member of West Siders for

         23  Viable Neighborhoods, a community organization that

         24  represents individuals in Manhattan Community Board

         25  7 and the very southern portions of Manhattan
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          2  Community Board 9 in Manhattan.

          3                 I would like to thank Zoning

          4  Committee Chair Avella for pressing the City

          5  Planning Commission to move forward on this issue,

          6  it's certainly an issue that you have been very

          7  committed to and we appreciate your support of this

          8  reform effort.

          9                 As a member of the Citywide Coalition

         10  for Community Facilities Reform, I hope this will be

         11  a first step in a broader review of the community

         12  facilities section of the zoning law.

         13                 A particular interest is the need to

         14  modify the as-of-right bulk bonuses provided to

         15  community facilities in the zoning code. These

         16  as-of-right bonuses often result in structures out

         17  of character with the surrounding neighborhood.

         18                 The facilities often strain

         19  neighborhood resources, alter the residential

         20  character of neighborhoods, and don't necessarily

         21  provide community facility benefits to the

         22  neighborhood.

         23                 I would sound one additional warning

         24  about parking requirements.

         25                 Proposals to require additional

                                                            67

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  parking at community facilities in lower density

          3  neighborhoods may be entirely appropriate solutions

          4  to a problem in these neighborhoods.

          5                 However, requiring additional parking

          6  at community facilities in higher density

          7  neighborhoods may be the wrong solution for these

          8  neighborhoods.

          9                 Additionally, the Committee should

         10  consider allowing community facilities to make

         11  certain transit improvements such as bus loading

         12  areas, bus shelters and subway station enhancements

         13  in lieu of a portion of their parking requirements

         14  in appropriately dense neighborhoods.

         15                 Again, I would just like to thank the

         16  Committee for moving forward on this. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Next panel,

         18  Leslie Fitzpatrick, Greenwich Village Society for

         19  Historic Preservation; Bob Nobile from the

         20  Littleneck Pines Association; and Pat Carpentiere

         21  from the Greater Whitestone Taxpayer Civic

         22  Association.

         23                 MS. FITZPATRICK: Good morning. My

         24  name is Leslie Fitzpatrick, and I am here today on

         25  behalf of the Greenwich Village Society for Historic
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          2  Preservation, the largest membership organization in

          3  Greenwich Village, whose mission is to preserve the

          4  unique architectural and historic character of

          5  Greenwich Village and the East Village and to

          6  promote historic preservation.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Can you speak a

          8  little closer into the mic?

          9                 MS. FITZPATRICK: Sure.

         10                 I want to thank Council Member Avella

         11  for holding this hearing and for his ongoing efforts

         12  to work with GVSHP and many other groups on the very

         13  pressing need for reform of community facility

         14  zoning regulations.

         15                 GVSHP has long called for legislation

         16  to reform the way community facilities are regulated

         17  under the zoning code.

         18                 In 2002, GVSHP issued a report titled

         19  "After the Kimmel Center," referring to a very

         20  large community facility built as-of-right on

         21  Washington Square South with an enormous visual

         22  impact on historic and otherwise consistently

         23  built-up area.

         24                 That report made several

         25  recommendations regarding the reforms of community
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          2  facility zoning necessary to protect the character

          3  of neighborhoods like Greenwich Village and the East

          4  Village, which has been visually decimated by an

          5  enormous concentration of these structures.

          6                 GVSHP helped found the Citywide

          7  Coalition for Community Facility Reform, a Coalition

          8  of over 125 organizations Citywide, working to make

          9  changes to the City's community facility zoning

         10  regulation, and our Executive Director, who cannot

         11  be here today serves as its co-coordinator.

         12                 The Coalition has called for an

         13  overhaul of the zoning code to better protect

         14  neighborhood character in relation to these

         15  structures, and to more rationally fit them into the

         16  context of their surroundings.

         17                 The legislation before you today is a

         18  small step in that direction. While it will have no

         19  direct beneficial impact whatsoever in Lower

         20  Manhattan, where relief from the proliferation of

         21  oversized community facilities is so needed. We hope

         22  it is the beginning of a process to promulgate

         23  legislation, which will in fact address the many

         24  other long overdue reforms necessary and other

         25  areas, and in other manifestations throughout the
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          2  City, including Lower Manhattan.

          3                 We recognize that this is an

          4  important step beyond what has come before it, but

          5  we also recognize that our neighborhoods, like many

          6  others throughout the City, are being slowly or not

          7  so slowly substantially changed in their character,

          8  look and texture, simply by virtue of the community

          9  facility provision of the zoning text, which I think

         10  we can all say were undoubtedly never intended to

         11  have the effect they now have.

         12                 Unfortunately, however, powerful

         13  vested interests are now very intent upon preserving

         14  the status quo, and we do appreciate the Council and

         15  the City's interest in improving the current system,

         16  and especially appreciate Subcommittee Chair

         17  Avella's clear leadership and engagement on this

         18  issue.

         19                 However, for the reform effort to

         20  have a meaningful effect, this legislation will have

         21  to be followed, and followed quickly by additional

         22  legislation to address the myriad outstanding issues

         23  regarding community facilities zoning, still

         24  requiring solutions and still having a terribly

         25  detrimental impact on our neighborhoods.
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          2                 We thank the Council member for

          3  introducing the legislation and hope to see it

          4  enacted. We do, however, also strongly urge the

          5  entire Council to take up this issue and its many

          6  factors and in its entirety very soon. We cannot

          7  afford to wait much longer. Thank you.

          8                 MR. NOBILE: Good morning. My name is

          9  Bob Nobile. I'm the Co-Chairman of Little Neck Pines

         10  Association.

         11                 Our Association is the eastern most

         12  part of northeast Queens, we have a home town

         13  feeling to our community. We are new to the influx

         14  of community facilities.

         15                 I just want to bring an example to

         16  you of how the text change would have affected my

         17  neighborhood, had it been changed about a year ago.

         18                 There's a house of worship being

         19  built in my community that will have the capacity of

         20  approximately 1,500 people when it's in full use.

         21                 There is a full kitchen facility and

         22  banquet hall in the basement. The facility is very

         23  large necessarily in R 1, R 2 area. Parking, there

         24  will be 30 parking spaces for this facility that

         25  will house 1,500 people when in full operation.
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          2                 This is unbelievable that such a

          3  large facility is allowed to come into an area such

          4  as ours, which is mostly residential, and they're

          5  allowed to do basically what they want to do because

          6  of the law. That's why it's instrumental that the

          7  City Council really look into this and make the

          8  changes that are necessary.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 MR. CARPENTIERE: Councilman Avella,

         11  members of the City Council, my name is Pat

         12  Carpentiere, Greater Whitestone Taxpayer Civic

         13  Association.

         14                 I'd like to read a quote from the

         15  August 29th, 2002 Whitestone Times Ledger."Marcie

         16  Hamilton, a lawyer from Benjamin Cardoza Law School,

         17  who specializes in search state issues says: 'The

         18  notion that houses of worship built today are still

         19  a local phenomena that draw nearby residents who

         20  belong to the church, and walk to services, is

         21  outdated. This was a century ago,' she said.

         22   'there's no reason to think that church is coming

         23  in with any vested interest or ties to the

         24  community."

         25                 I'd also like to read a quote from
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          2  City Councilman John Liu. It says he would like to

          3  see "as-of-right status of community facilities

          4  revoked, and a review process put in place to notify

          5  the community when a public facility is being

          6  built," a stance also shared by Community Board 7.

          7                 I would also like to be specific on a

          8  situation on 35th Avenue. There are three religious

          9  institutions run by the same organization, 150th

         10  Street and 35th; 156th and 35th; and 163rd and 35th.

         11  Two are houses, and one is the size of a church. To

         12  think that they need three facilities that preach

         13  the same doctrine within an area of less than a half

         14  a mile is ridiculous. It's a perpetration of a fraud

         15  on the people of Queens County. Not to mention the

         16  fact that they would not provide the services that

         17  Church on the Hill provides with the programs of

         18  AAA, Gamblers Anonymous, and other functions that

         19  were more appropriate, and I would also like to

         20  mention that Church on the Hill is also a

         21  non-sectarian church.

         22                 So, I think under the guise of

         23  religion, we should look further into the situation

         24  and one of the main reasons why the taxpayers

         25  association was formed was because the abuse of
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          2  taxes on the people of Queens County, especially

          3  Whitestone, and that would put two houses back on

          4  the tax rolls and maybe we could open up a firehouse

          5  or put a couple of more police officers on the

          6  street.

          7                 Thank you for your time.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          9                 The last panel will be Ruth DuBerry,

         10  and Lisa Marie Dixon.

         11                 After these individuals speak, we

         12  will be taking a few minutes break. At 11:30 I

         13  understand that DOT Commissioner Iris Weinshall will

         14  be here to talk about the Street Furniture Proposal.

         15  So, after these two speakers give their testimony,

         16  we will take a few minutes break and we will be back

         17  here in about 15 minutes.

         18                 MS. DuBERRY: My name is Ruth DuBerry.

         19  I am the officer of Southeast Queens Concerned

         20  Neighbors, and a member of United Civic Association,

         21  and members of Queen Civic Congress.

         22                 I am a Community Board 12 member, but

         23  I am not speaking for community boards this morning.

         24                 I'm pleased to be able to --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Can I interrupt
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          2  your testimony for one minute?

          3                 Can somebody tell the people in the

          4  back to be quiet so we can hear what's going on, and

          5  close that door, please.

          6                 Sorry.

          7                 MS. DuBERRY: It's all right.

          8                 We're happy that you have been taking

          9  issue and made it so important. We're pleased with

         10  the proposed zoning text change related to community

         11  facilities. I'll not repeat, however, about what has

         12  been said about medical houses and houses of

         13  worship, et cetera, et cetera. I certainly do agree

         14  with what I've heard so far from all the other

         15  speakers.

         16                 I'm sharing our community's great

         17  concern as as-of-right adult homes and homeless

         18  shelters. Although we understand and sympathize with

         19  the needs of these facilities, we feel that the

         20  Southeast Queens area has much more than its fair

         21  share. Board 12 has the highest number of shelters

         22  in Queens and Board 13 has the highest number of

         23  adult homes.

         24                 The quality of life issues of our

         25  residential area is impacted greatly, when adult
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          2  homes, especially those of the thousand families,

          3  second largest in the City, move into a very tight

          4  area where they are lined up with huge hotels

          5  already on that particular avenue. And this one

          6  hotel has been taken over for a 1,000 family

          7  shelter, impacts on them, as well, as far as

          8  economic development, which doesn't make sense to

          9  have the shelter.

         10                 We're also concerned about the next

         11  hotel that goes into bankruptcy and will that be

         12  turned into another shelter? There's certainly

         13  impacts from the character of our neighborhood and

         14  the quality of life issues that we are concerned

         15  about as everyone else is.

         16                 The community asks that in the future

         17  that there be more control as to where large

         18  shelters are placed. There's no consideration for

         19  parking for the residents or their visitors. There's

         20  no space for visitors inside that property so they

         21  lure outside the property into the community.

         22  There's no playground for children, although we have

         23  suggested that they build one.

         24                 We work with an advisory committee

         25  because we're concerned about the residents in that
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          2  shelter, just as we're concerned about the impact on

          3  our community.

          4                 So, we hope that in the future

          5  greater consideration will be given to this, and

          6  that they choose a much different area.

          7                 Our community is now working together

          8  to hopefully change our R 2 3 zoning to prevent

          9  further damage to the character of our neighborhoods

         10  and the impact on our quality of life.

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 MS. DIXON: Hi. My name is Lisa Marie

         13  Dixon, and I am a -- is this on? Hello? Okay.

         14                 My name is Lisa Marie Dixon. I live

         15  on the Lower East Side, I live in the East Village

         16  in Manhattan, and I am a public member of Community

         17  Board 3's Housing, Land Use and Zoning Committee, as

         18  well as the Citywide Coalition for Community

         19  Facility Reform, although I'm not speaking on behalf

         20  of either today.

         21                 And I also want to say that I'm very

         22  pleased to hear that there's some movement forward

         23  in community facility reform, although rather

         24  disappointed that it's simply in the lower density

         25  residential areas. And my district is primarily an R
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          2  7 2, and I can imagine that when somebody, when you

          3  see these facilities in a single-family, you know,

          4  double, triple, four-family home area visually it

          5  probably makes a much bigger impact and much more

          6  obvious.

          7                 I have to say in an R 7 2, I believe

          8  that a community facility, the difference in what's

          9  now allowed as a floor area ratio, which is 3.44, if

         10  that's a community facility it's 6.05. So, it's no

         11  less material in our neighborhood, and although it

         12  may not be quite as obvious visually, it has a

         13  tremendous impact. And along those lines when

         14  someone asks, you know, what is the definition of a

         15  community facility, I mean one of the things that

         16  was not mentioned was a dormitory, and that's one of

         17  the biggest things that we face. I mean, literally

         18  instead of a five -, six-story building, you're

         19  getting a 12 -, 13-story building, and it's rather

         20  radical.

         21                 So, I also notice that I thank

         22  Council Member Quinn for saying that she did want to

         23  look at areas other than just Queens, but she was

         24  also talking about the time length that it took, not

         25  only to get this proposal forward, but how long it
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          2  may be before other areas are studied. And I mean, I

          3  don't believe that if this takes another year and a

          4  half, and then they're going to start looking at

          5  these areas, and it's really I feel too long, and I

          6  would just urge you guys to take a look at other

          7  areas, including higher residential density. Thank

          8  you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I would just

         10  mention this proposal does affect many areas

         11  throughout the entire City, not just Queens.

         12                 MS. DIXON: Right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: But we do

         14  recognize the fact that there are certain issues

         15  that are not in this first step, and myself, I think

         16  Melinda, we are committed to working towards the

         17  rest of the issues in addressing the whole community

         18  facilities issue.

         19                 MS. DIXON: I'll leave with you, I

         20  mean we started, just to give you an idea, this is

         21  90 different people, most of whom couldn't be here

         22  today, and you'll notice only about ten percent are

         23  from the outlying areas, primarily it's from

         24  Manhattan. So, that's great, and the sooner the

         25  better.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          4                 We have one more speaker who signed

          5  up, Bob Harris.

          6                 MR. HARRIS: I'm Bob Harris, President

          7  of the West Cunningham Park Civic Association in

          8  Fresh Meadows, Queens. I'm also in the Queens Civic

          9  Congress and on Community Board 8.

         10                 Over the years I've also attended the

         11  Queens Zoning Task Force operated by the Borough

         12  President, which has been very interesting meetings

         13  to attend.

         14                 We've been saying for years and years

         15  that there should be changes in the community

         16  facilities law, and we are now happy that they

         17  finally are putting them through. But suddenly my

         18  neighborhood has been inundated. I've listened over

         19  the years to the North Flushing, complaining how

         20  they are being inundated, and now suddenly my

         21  neighborhood.

         22                 Along Union Turnpike from 188th

         23  Street to 193rd Street, there is, the north side is

         24  commercial, the south side is one commercial block,

         25  and the rest are R 2, suddenly we've discovered that
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          2  three doctors' offices have been built on the south

          3  side and that one on the north side at 193rd Street,

          4  and now there is also a dentist office on 188th

          5  Street, and a pediatric ophthalmologist on 192nd

          6  Street, that we're happy with because it replaced

          7  the bar which was terrible for the neighborhood.

          8                 At any rate, suddenly another doctor

          9  now wants to build an office on 192nd Street on the

         10  south side in the R 2 area. It's an old doctor's

         11  office which has been used as a house.

         12                 He wants to add an area in the back,

         13  and he wants to have three variances, add an area to

         14  the side or the back of the house, which is along

         15  Union Turnpike and he and his wife want to operate

         16  two doctors' offices from this building. The

         17  neighborhood is unhappy along 189th Street where

         18  there are several doctors' offices, there is no

         19  parking now. 192nd on that area will be bad.

         20                 In addition, the neighborhood over

         21  the years has had added to it two group homes which

         22  fit in very nicely in the neighborhood, another

         23  doctor's office way down the turnpike, and suddenly

         24  these areas which are R 2, as-of-right, becoming

         25  offices. We're opposed to this current proposal to
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          2  have this doctor have three variances, and we are

          3  nervous about what will happen next to our

          4  neighborhood. We don't want to become the way North

          5  Flushing has become. We are a nice residential

          6  neighborhood, we'd like to stay that way, and have a

          7  little, some facilities for service for the

          8  neighborhood, but not to be a facility neighborhood.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you, Bob.

         11                 That closes the public hearing aspect

         12  of the first item on the agenda.

         13                 We will now take a few minutes'

         14  break.

         15                 When we come back we will be voting

         16  on the first item.

         17                 (Recess taken.)

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I think I

         19  mentioned this morning that this was going to be a

         20  rather lengthy agenda, and because it is the only

         21  scheduled meeting until September, there are a

         22  number of items that we will have to bring up and

         23  discuss because they do affect the operation of the

         24  City.

         25                 The first thing what I'd like to do
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          2  is we will take a vote on the community facilities

          3  zoning resolution changes, then Commissioner Iris

          4  Weinshall is here, and the Department of

          5  Transportation to make a presentation on the Street

          6  Furniture Proposal.

          7                 The text of the Street Furniture

          8  Proposal will be distributed to anybody who wants

          9  it. We will then go back to the original agenda, I

         10  think going on next to Hudson Square. We will then

         11  take testimony later on in the day for those people

         12  who want to testify about the street furniture, so

         13  this will give everybody an opportunity to review

         14  the text amendment changes that the Commissioner

         15  will announce.

         16                 I will now call upon Counsel for the

         17  Committee to call the vote in terms of community

         18  facilities.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Avella.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         22  Quinn.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         25  Gioia.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Yes.

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          4  Katz.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye.

          6                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          7  McMahon.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         10  at five in the affirmative, none in the negative and

         11  no abstentions and are referred to the full Land Use

         12  Committee.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. I also

         14  would like to recognize the fact that we've been

         15  joined during the public hearing aspect by Council

         16  Member Gerson, who doesn't want to speak but I'll

         17  call upon him after we've had an opportunity to hear

         18  from Commissioner Weinshall.

         19                 Commissioner.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Good morning.

         21  I'm Iris Weinshall, Commissioner of the New York

         22  City Department of Transportation, and I'm here

         23  today with Jonathan Mintz, Deputy Commissioner of

         24  the Department of Consumer Affairs, and Kerry Gould,

         25  who is managing the Street Furniture Project at DOT.
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          2                 Thank you for providing me with this

          3  opportunity to testify in support of Land Use Item

          4  No. 226, empowering the Department of Transportation

          5  to grant a franchise for the installation, operation

          6  and maintenance of coordinated street furniture

          7  structures and for the placement of advertisement on

          8  such structures.

          9                 I commend the Council and this

         10  Committee for joining DOT in making this issue a

         11  priority. The authority bestowed by this resolution

         12  is important, in that it will allow DOT to provide

         13  necessary public services while fiscally benefitting

         14  the City by expanding the agency's successful bus

         15  stop shelter programs to other public amenities.

         16                 The City Streetscape is an issue that

         17  affects the quality of life of all New Yorkers.

         18                 The lack of coordination and

         19  maintenance of street furniture, as well as the

         20  visual clutter of our streets, detracts from our

         21  City's beauty, in addition to discouraging street

         22  use.

         23                 A coordinated street furniture

         24  franchise will allow the City to transform the look

         25  and feel of its streets by creating an aesthetically
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          2  pleasing streetscape without the burden of public

          3  investment.

          4                 Such a franchise will dramatically

          5  improve the appearance and quality of design

          6  structures placed on our sidewalks.

          7                 The franchise structures will include

          8  bus stop shelters, newsstands, and public toilets

          9  with the possible addition of other items that

         10  provide a public service.

         11                 The franchise will replace 3,100

         12  existing bus stop shelters and the 310 newsstands in

         13  all five boroughs.

         14                 In addition to the aesthetic

         15  benefits, the City will also benefit financially

         16  from the creation of a street furniture franchise.

         17                 In exchange for the right to sell

         18  advertising on street furniture, a private company

         19  will assume the burdens of the substantial capital

         20  assessment in building these structures and ongoing

         21  maintenance costs. The City will collect previously

         22  unrealized income from advertising on such street

         23  furniture in the form of a franchise fee, which is

         24  usually the hire of a guaranteed minimum or a

         25  percentage of gross advertising revenues.
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          2                 The benefits of street furniture

          3  franchises are already being realized by other major

          4  municipalities, including Los Angeles, Chicago and

          5  Boston.

          6                 Over this past year, these cities

          7  have signed successful coordinated street furniture

          8  contracts, similar to the type that we are

          9  contemplating.

         10                 Although the style of street

         11  furniture varies from city-to-city, all of these

         12  cities share a common experience in that they expect

         13  to generate significant revenue while enjoying a

         14  public good.

         15                 New York City would likely surpass

         16  any revenue projected by these cities because of our

         17  lucrative advertising market and the geographic size

         18  and population of our City.

         19                 Upon submitting the original

         20  authorizing resolution, the Council expressed

         21  concerns about several issues, and after further

         22  discussions we feel the amended resolution reflects

         23  the partnership between the Council and the

         24  Administration to address these issues.

         25                 The Council expressed concerns about
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          2  the relationship between the franchisee and the

          3  newsstand operator, and the proposal was revised

          4  accordingly.

          5                 As for the design of the interior of

          6  the newsstand, the administration agreed that

          7  newsstands should be designed with the every day

          8  needs of the newsstand operators in mind.

          9                 In response, the Department is

         10  willing to consider suggestions the Council may have

         11  for establishing a process so representatives of the

         12  newsstand operators can have input on design

         13  criteria that will be included in the RFP.

         14                 In addition, the franchisee will be

         15  responsible for all utility work, including

         16  telephone and electrical hook up, necessary to

         17  install the new structures.

         18                 The siting of the public toilets was

         19  of great concern to many members and the

         20  Administration and the Speaker agreed to share the

         21  task of final approval for locations.

         22                 As we all know, the City finds itself

         23  in fiscally trying times and we share the Council's

         24  desire to see more of the financial benefits of the

         25  franchise in the earlier years of the contract, yet
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          2  we do not want to sacrifice the best financial

          3  package.

          4                 The resolution strikes a balance

          5  between those two desires by providing a preference

          6  for financial proposals that are front-loaded, but

          7  allowing for flexibility so the City can choose the

          8  best overall financial package.

          9                 Intro 441, the accompanying newsstand

         10  bill, changes the newsstand law to allow advertising

         11  on the franchise newsstand. This bill also

         12  contemplates an amortization plan that requires the

         13  newsstand operators to pay for the construction cost

         14  of the new newsstand.

         15                 These costs would be paid out over a

         16  20-year period at a favorable interest rate. In

         17  light of the fiscal times, the Administration hoped

         18  to capture additional revenues for the City by

         19  recouping the newsstand cost with a proposal we felt

         20  was reasonable.

         21                 I would also ask for your support of

         22  Intro. 466, which allows the Department to extend

         23  the present bus stop shelter franchise. The

         24  extension is needed to fill the gap between the

         25  expiration of the present bus stop shelter
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          2  franchise, which will happen this December and the

          3  time needed to issue the street furniture RFP and

          4  negotiate a contract.

          5                 I certainly commend the efforts that

          6  went into developing a compromise on the authorizing

          7  resolution. I believe the Street Furniture Program

          8  will be a great success and will benefit all New

          9  Yorkers. Thank you, again, for allowing me this

         10  opportunity to testify before you today, and I'll be

         11  happy to answer any questions that you may have.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

         13  Commissioner.

         14                 I understand that you are under time

         15  pressure. What we're going to do, you heard me

         16  mention it before, is we will take public testimony

         17  on the text changes a little bit later on in the

         18  day. Is it possible to have somebody from DOT remain

         19  and answer questions as they come up later on?

         20                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Absolutely.

         21  Kerry Gould, on my staff, will stay here for the

         22  whole hearing.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And for the

         24  education of everybody present, it's my

         25  understanding that we will be voting on the bus
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          2  shelter portion and the pay toilets portion, but the

          3  newsstand issues as related in 441 we will not be

          4  voting on today.

          5                 Any of my committee members have

          6  questions for the Commissioner before she runs?

          7                 Thank you, Commissioner.

          8                 Oh, I'm sorry. You almost got away.

          9                 Council Member Christine Quinn.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: What is your

         11  sense of two questions about what the level of

         12  revenue that would be that would be generated by the

         13  proposal?

         14                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, the

         15  only thing that we can go by is what other cities

         16  project their revenue to be, and as I said in my

         17  testimony, of course because of the geographic area

         18  of New York, and because of the nature of the amount

         19  of structures that we have in New York, we believe

         20  our revenues will be that much greater.

         21                 But the City of Chicago, which had no

         22  toilets in their street furniture franchise,

         23  projects 307 million over 20 years, and Los Angeles

         24  which has much fewer structures, is anticipating

         25  $150 million over 20 years. So, we believe our
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          2  numbers will be much higher over a 20-year period. I

          3  don't want to give a specific number, but we believe

          4  it will be much more substantial than Chicago.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: At a hearing we

          6  had, an earlier hearing, one of the earlier hearings

          7  on these topic, some of the representatives of

          8  industries that are impacted by this have raised

          9  questions about the legality of this proposal ending

         10  up potentially treating newsstands differently than

         11  payphones, and I was wondering if you could comment

         12  on any thoughts that your Department has on that?

         13                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Well, at

         14  least initially, as far as the newsstands are

         15  concerned, they will be sited exactly where they're

         16  sited now. So, it's not as though we're going to be

         17  taking large, you know, expanses of areas and

         18  putting newsstands where they have not been to date.

         19                 So, in terms of the fact that there

         20  are newsstands there already, there will just be new

         21  expanded newsstands.

         22                 We, quite frankly, at DOT we do not

         23  run the payphone program, that's run out of DoITT. I

         24  would have to talk to Commissioner Menchini and see

         25  what the issues are facing that program.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Commissioner,

          4  just for clarification today, in your testimony, if

          5  I read, "the franchise structures will include bus

          6  stop shelters, newsstands and public toilets with

          7  the possible additions of other items that provide a

          8  public service." Am I correct that the other items

          9  shall include and be limited to trash receptacles,

         10  multi-rack newsracks and information/computer

         11  kiosks?

         12                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Absolutely.

         13  That's it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         15  questions from anyone?

         16                 Council Member Katz.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: More of a

         18  statement. I want to thank the Administration and

         19  the Chair and obviously the Land Use Division for

         20  the work they put in getting us to this point, and

         21  also the compromises that have been made, I think

         22  the fact that we're passing it out today, this

         23  authorizing resolution is a good step. I think that

         24  we do need more time on the newsstand, so I think

         25  that's an appropriate resolution to a conflict,
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          2  which is to postpone it, and also the fact that the

          3  Mayor's Office and the Speaker of the Council work

          4  out a compromise on placing the toilets and actually

          5  coming up with an agreement that wherever they are

          6  placed will be an agreement amongst both the

          7  parties, and I want to thank the Administration for

          8  that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

         10  Commissioner.

         11                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If you could just

         13  let us know who is staying here from DOT, I would

         14  appreciate it.

         15                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL: Kerry Gould

         16  will be here all day.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         18                 Now, going back to the regular

         19  calendar, Land Use No. 22620035026GFY, which is an

         20  authorizing resolution for a pay phone franchise, is

         21  also, is laid over again. It was laid over from May

         22  6th, May 20, May 29th and June 17th. It will also be

         23  laid over again because we are still working out the

         24  final details on the language, and that is actually

         25  at the request of the industry.
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          2                 I'm going to skip a little bit

          3  because I know there are members of the community

          4  that are here, on specific items.

          5                 We'll now go to Land Use No. 448 and

          6  449. They are commonly referred to as the Hudson

          7  Square application.

          8                 C030237ZMN, and N030236ZRM, an

          9  application by the Department of City Planning for

         10  an amendment of the zoning map, for various streets

         11  within Hudson Square.

         12                 While the City Planning is setting up

         13  for their presentation, I'm going to ask Council

         14  Member Eric Gioia to temporarily chair the meeting

         15  while I step out for a moment.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON GIOIA: Mr. Barth,

         17  you can begin with the presentation and we will

         18  commence with the public hearing when you're done

         19  with your presentation.

         20                 MR. BARTH: Thank you. Do I call you

         21  temporary Chair Gioia?

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON GIOIA: Gioia.

         23                 MR. BARTH: Gioia, I'm sorry.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON GIOIA: Okay.

         25                 MR. BARTH: The Department is pleased
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          2  to testify before you today. The Hudson Square

          3  rezoning is an application filed by the Department

          4  of City Planning. It came out of a report that was

          5  issued by the Department two years ago. It covers

          6  the area of west of 7th Avenue north of Canal

          7  Street, up to Morton Street.

          8                 The report was prompted, the report

          9  and study was prompted by a number of BSA

         10  applications and variances that had been approved

         11  for residential use in this area. The area zoned

         12  entirely for manufacturing M16 in the heart of the

         13  area, and M15 in the north.

         14                 The report set forth a framework for

         15  future zoning and future redevelopment, and in that

         16  framework it specifically identified opportunities

         17  for reuse, residential reuse in the northern portion

         18  adjacent to the west village, and in the southern

         19  portion in the area opposite Canal Street, opposite

         20  northern Tribeca.

         21                 And for the remainder of the area

         22  which is zoned manufacturing M16, the report

         23  recommended preservation of those M16 zones. It's an

         24  area that's had a particularly high level of

         25  investment, in terms of new commercial development,
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          2  you've also got some industrial uses in terms of UPS

          3  and other distribution-type uses. So, the rezoning

          4  attempted to strike a balance between preservation

          5  and manufacturing in some modest rezonings.

          6                 For more specifics on the rezoning,

          7  I'll turn it over to Meenakshi Srinivasan, the

          8  Deputy Director in the Manhattan Office.

          9                 MS. SRINIVASAN: Thank you, Richard.

         10                 The rezoning area, as you can see

         11  over here, is generally bounded, which is actually

         12  the study area, is generally bounded by Sixth Avenue

         13  and Varrick Street to the east, Hudson river to the

         14  west and West Street, Canal Street to the south, and

         15  Morton and Barrow Street to the north.

         16                 The area currently is entirely zoned

         17  for manufacturing, the most significant being within

         18  the heart of the district, between Varrick Street

         19  and Hudson Street, which is zoned for M16, what's

         20  the 10 FAR, high density commercial manufacturing

         21  districts.

         22                 The area both to the north and to the

         23  west are zoned M24 and M15.  These are also

         24  manufacturing districts which allow medium density.

         25                 The existing Land Use areas are
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          2  mixed. Although it's zoned manufacturing, there's a

          3  significant amount of commercial uses in the area,

          4  but 40 percent of the land use is occupied by

          5  commercial. There's another 12 percent which is

          6  occupied by mixed commercial manufacturing, and

          7  about 18 percent manufacturing uses.

          8                 Most of the commercial uses are

          9  concentrated, again, in the heart of the district

         10  between Hudson and Varrick Street, and manufacturing

         11  uses are scattered throughout. And as Richard

         12  mentioned, it's evidenced by the UPS facility

         13  towards the west, and St. John's freight terminal

         14  also to the west of the area.

         15                 Residential uses are scattered

         16  throughout the area, but they tend to concentrate

         17  both on the north and to the south.

         18                 They're about 735 residential units.

         19  To the north they're about 270 units. In addition,

         20  through various BSA applications, about 290 units

         21  are planned or under construction.

         22                 In the south you have a cluster of

         23  residential units between Hudson Street and Spring

         24  Street to the north. There are about 114 units that

         25  are there currently. And approximately a couple of
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          2  hundred units are under construction or planned as

          3  through BSA variances.

          4                 As Richard mentioned, the proposal

          5  aims to establish a comprehensive land use strategy

          6  for the area, which essentially maintains most of

          7  the manufacturing districts as they are today. The

          8  34 blocks, 25 blocks, will remain in manufacturing.

          9  This is where you see the heart of both firms and

         10  employment. It would retain about 17,000 jobs in

         11  that area, as well as approximately 7 million square

         12  feet of office space.

         13                 The proposed rezoning really targets

         14  where new residential can take place, recognizing

         15  that there's a demand for increased residential in

         16  the area, and it focused the residential toward the

         17  north and the south where essentially you see the

         18  existing context of residential uses, or their

         19  adjacent to establish residential communities.

         20                 To the north we're proposing a mixed

         21  use district, which is an M15, R7X district. This

         22  has a density of 5 FAR, it maintains existing

         23  density that's there today. But we're also proposing

         24  a contextual district, which will establish a height

         25  limit of 120 feet that allows you ten to 11 stories.
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          2  Currently there's no height limit that exists in the

          3  north.

          4                 Towards the south we're also rezoning

          5  three blocks where the scale is somewhat different

          6  from the rest of the area. We're proposing a C6 2A

          7  district that's a contextual commercial district

          8  which allows both residential and commercial uses at

          9  6 FAR. Currently two of the blocks are zoned for 10

         10  FAR and one for 5. This entire area would now be

         11  rezoned for 6 FAR, so it's actually lowering the

         12  density in certain portions.

         13                 This is also contextual district,

         14  which would have a height limit of 120 feet. Both

         15  rezoning areas also require street full requirements

         16  to ensure that new development will be compatible

         17  with existing context.

         18                 We'd be happy to answer any

         19  questions, Council members.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON GIOIA: Council

         21  Member Quinn.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         23  First, before questions, I want to state for the

         24  record, and I've had numerous conversations with

         25  City Planning about this proposal as it's worked its
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          2  way through the process, and my position on this

          3  proposal is very -- let me try a different mic and

          4  see what happens. Oh, good, it's not me.

          5                 My position, which is pretty much the

          6  same as Community Board 2, which includes this area,

          7  is that the southern -- because basically the

          8  proposal, you can see it changes, it doesn't change

          9  and then changes. So, the southern changes are ones

         10  that I feel comfortable with.

         11                 My concern is that if we -- I have a

         12  couple of concerns that if we were to change the

         13  southern part and the northern part, that the goal

         14  of seeking to preserve the manufacturing jobs and

         15  industry in the middle might not be met, that in

         16  fact by rezoning in the north and the south you

         17  create a bit of a squeeze play for the area in the

         18  middle. And I'm afraid that doing those both

         19  simultaneously may have a negative affect and really

         20  potentially jeopardize the jobs and the workers in

         21  the middle.

         22                 I'm also concerned about the northern

         23  area, the impact that that rezoning would have on

         24  the West Village Houses, which is not included in

         25  the area, but abuts the area, and that of course is

                                                            102

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  a long-standing Mitchell-Lama, moderate,

          3  middle-income Mitchell-Lama, which is presently

          4  going through the process of the owner wanting to

          5  buy out of the program, and I'm afraid that if we

          6  rezone the north in such a way, it really creates a

          7  financial incentive for those houses to come out of

          8  the Mitchell-Lama program and puts the folks who

          9  live there, who really would not, I don't believe,

         10  be able to stay in the West Village, if that

         11  happened, put their ability to stay as productive

         12  and terrific members of our neighborhood in

         13  jeopardy.

         14                 So, although I think the south is a

         15  step in the right direction, I'm concerned about the

         16  manufacturing and the impact on our long-time

         17  tenants in the West Village, so I think the north is

         18  not something we should be doing, you know, at this

         19  moment in time, and I guess my question is, to what

         20  degree did you consider both the impact that doing

         21  both at the same time would have on the

         22  manufacturing, and also to what degree did you look

         23  at the impact this would have on the West Village

         24  Houses and the tenants there?

         25                 MR. BARTH: Well, Council Member, we
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          2  recognize the concerns. We recognize that Community

          3  Board 2 had also raised similar concerns and they

          4  were articulated in their resolution.

          5                 The Department, when it came up for

          6  this plan for the area, it was specifically to

          7  identify those areas where the manufacturing

          8  districts the Department felt should be retained in

          9  those areas where they are given the current uses in

         10  proximity to other residential uses that new

         11  residential use is appropriate.

         12                 And I think all of us share concerns

         13  about the BSA and variances that have been issued

         14  for residential use in the area.

         15                 So, we appreciate those concerns. The

         16  Department really came down in a different place,

         17  but we respectfully disagree on that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay. And I do

         19  want to say, and I totally agree that the process

         20  with the BSA variances in this neighborhood and

         21  there's one for this new building Morton Square,

         22  which was something that was adamantly opposed by

         23  really all of us in this process, neighborhood

         24  pickets, et cetera, et cetera. You know, the BSA

         25  variance process has been devastating to this part
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          2  of the Village and I think we need to be looking for

          3  solutions, I just don't think this is the right one

          4  at this moment in time.

          5                 So, I want to further say, I want to

          6  thank the Chair of the Subcommittee, Council Member

          7  Avella, and the chair of the full Committee, Council

          8  Member Katz, and the staff, Alonzo and Pat and Gail

          9  and Chris, because I believe what we're going to be

         10  looking at today is actually, since we're all

         11  committed to trying to solve this problem, but as I

         12  said don't think that the proposal CPC has put

         13  forward for the north is the right way of doing it,

         14  are going to consider just the southern portion for

         15  adoption modifying the proposal that you sent to us

         16  and not moving on the north; are you aware that

         17  that's what we're going to be considering?

         18                 MR. BARTH: I was aware there was a

         19  good chance that would take place, and it's

         20  certainly where the scope of the action that was

         21  considered for those modifications to be made.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, it is

         23  technically in scope and within our power to just --

         24                 MR. BARTH: The City Planning

         25  Commission would give that final determination. But,
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          2  yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay. Thank

          4  you.

          5                 MR. BARTH: Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And we look

          7  forward to continue to work on the challenges of

          8  this neighborhood, and I want to again thank the

          9  Committee for modifying the application that's

         10  before us today.

         11                 MR. BARTH: Thank you.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON GIOIA: Does any

         13  other members have any questions?

         14                 Okay, I'd like to bring up John Mele;

         15  Ashoki Sprivizon (phonetic). I apologize, because I

         16  know I pronounced that incorrectly, and Richard

         17  Barth -- no, we just did that one. And Zach

         18  Winestine.

         19                 MR. MELE: Hi. My name is John Mele. I

         20  represent Ponte Equities, along with its affiliates

         21  own over a dozen buildings in the proposed area of

         22  rezoning.

         23                 It's our understanding that this

         24  rezoning will help some of the variances -- well, we

         25  won't need variances for some of the proposed
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          2  development, and we support the rezoning in this

          3  area. Thank you.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON GIOIA: Thank you.

          5  Short and sweet.

          6                 Next witness, please.

          7                 MR. WINESTINE: Hi. My name is Zack

          8  Winestine. I'm speaking today for the Greenwich

          9  Village Community Task Force in opposition to the

         10  proposed rezoning of the northern section, or the

         11  Greenwich Village section, of this proposal.

         12                 The Greenwich Village Community Task

         13  Force was formed in the spring of 1998 to address

         14  Land Use issues along Community Board 2's western

         15  and southern edges.

         16                 We're a coalition of local civic

         17  organizations, tenants groups and block

         18  associations, and I'd like to thank you for this

         19  opportunity to testify.

         20                 The northern section of this area

         21  currently is maintaining a delicate balance of

         22  residential, light manufacturing, commercial uses,

         23  and it's our concern that this proposed rezoning

         24  will severely disrupt that balance. By allowing

         25  residential conversion as-of-right, it's going to
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          2  create a tremendous economic incentive for building

          3  owners to not renew existing commercial and light

          4  manufacturing leases and replace those leases with

          5  residential uses at much, much higher rates, as soon

          6  as the existing leases expire.

          7                 By CPC's previous testimony there are

          8  approximately 5,000 commercial and light

          9  manufacturing jobs in the area and these would be

         10  threatened with displacement. It makes absolutely no

         11  sense at a time when the City is offering

         12  multi-million dollar tax abatements to corporations

         13  in order to retain hundreds of jobs in the City that

         14  we would have zoning changes which might put

         15  thousands of jobs at risk.

         16                 I'd like to specifically point out an

         17  example. At 110 Leroy Street, the Industrial

         18  Development Agency recently granted substantial

         19  amounts of money to encourage film production

         20  organizations to increase their use, their office

         21  use in that building. That same address, 110 Leroy

         22  Street, is specified in the City Planning Commission

         23  proposal as a potential site for residential

         24  conversion.

         25                 It makes no sense for the City to be
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          2  giving money to retain manufacturing jobs with one

          3  hand, and yet at the same time passing a proposal

          4  which will make those jobs redundant and push them

          5  out of this area.

          6                 I would like to also point out that

          7  the balance in our neighborhood is currently

          8  threatened by two other developments, neither of

          9  which is really fully considered in the

         10  environmental impact statement that was put together

         11  for this proposal.

         12                 The first is the development to the

         13  BSA variance of 600 Washington Street, otherwise

         14  known as Morton Square. This will introduce 342

         15  residential units and approximately 1,000 people

         16  into this district.

         17                 Until we really understand how this

         18  will transform the area and what effect these new

         19  residents are going to have. It really doesn't seem

         20  wise to be proposing wholesale rezoning.

         21                 The second is the development of Pier

         22  40, a 15-acre site immediately adjacent to the

         23  proposed rezoned area, which is mandated as a

         24  development note in the Hudson River Park Act.

         25                 There are several proposals floating
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          2  around now for uses of Pier 40, such as Big Box

          3  stores, the proposed aquarium. It's not clear what's

          4  going to happen, but whatever happens, it's going to

          5  radically increase traffic access to the area, and

          6  it will probably bring in millions of visitors.

          7                 This was not considered in the EIS,

          8  and, again, we feel that it's unwise to consider

          9  rezoning at this time, until we really know what's

         10  going to happen at Pier 40, and I can assess that

         11  along with the effects of the 600 Washington Square

         12  building.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON GIOIA: Thank you

         15  for your comments.

         16                 I'd like to call up the next panel.

         17  Council Member Quinn has one question.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Actually, it's

         19  not as much a question as just a statement. The

         20  issue you raised, which I had meant to raised at

         21  City Planning, I just think is an important one for

         22  the record that all the one arm in the

         23  Administration is talking about rezoning in this

         24  area to make it residential and another arm of the

         25  Administration is actually investing financial
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          2  resources to try to spur and support the jobs in

          3  manufacturing in this area. So, clearly to the north

          4  there is a mixed message from the Administration

          5  about what should happen in this neighborhood,

          6  certainly that money is not going to be as well

          7  spent, if while we're investing IDA grants into the

          8  area we're rezoning it for residential. So, I just

          9  want to thank you for raising that point, which I

         10  forgot to raise with the Administration. So, thank

         11  you.

         12                 MR. WINESTINE: Thank you.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON GIOIA: Thank you,

         14  again, for your time.

         15                 I'd like to call up the next panel.

         16  Mr. Albert Bennett; Katy Bordonaro; and Gregory

         17  Brender from Assembly Member Deborah Glick's office.

         18                 MR. BENNETT: I am Albert Bennett.

         19  With the Chair's permission, I would like the other

         20  two members of the panel to precede me.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: That's fine.

         22                 MR. BENNETT: I'll fill in the holes.

         23                 MR. BRENDER: Good morning. My name is

         24  Gregory Brender. I'm here representing Assembly

         25  Member Deborah Glick.
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          2                 I appreciate the opportunity to

          3  comment on the proposed rezoning of Hudson Square. I

          4  am concerned about some of the proposed changes and

          5  how they will permanently alter the fabric of the

          6  neighborhood.

          7                 For the purpose of clarity, I would

          8  like to offer my comments by breaking the proposal

          9  into two sections.

         10                 Section one is the proposed changes

         11  of zoning between Spring, Washington, Canal and

         12  Hudson Street from M 2 4 and M 1 6 to C 6-2A.

         13                 As you're aware, these changes would

         14  allow for new residential development while

         15  continuing to permit commercial and light industrial

         16  uses to remain. These changes will allow a maximum

         17  height allowance of 120 feet.

         18                 This is inconsistent with the

         19  existing buildings in the area. As we've repeatedly

         20  seen, most developers will take full advantage of

         21  this allowance, or submit an application to the

         22  Board of Standards and Appeals for a variance to

         23  allow for more height than is allowed as-of-right.

         24                 I am deeply concerned about this

         25  extraordinary height allowance beyond the zoned FAR
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          2  of 5.0. Section 2 is the proposed zoning change of

          3  the area bordered by Barrel and Norton on the north,

          4  Hudson on the east, and Clarkson and Leroy on the

          5  south, and Greenwich, Washington and West Streets on

          6  the west to a special mixed use district of M 1-5 R

          7  7 X, with an M S-6 overlay.

          8                 I am deeply troubled by the allowance

          9  for residential conversion of existing manufacturing

         10  buildings in this area.

         11                 As already has been demonstrated in

         12  Chelsea, where a similar change is implemented,

         13  developers will move forward to create luxury

         14  residential housing, forcing existing manufacturing

         15  businesses to close.

         16                 This would result in the loss of

         17  thousands of local jobs. Additionally, luxury

         18  gentrification of the neighborhood could price out

         19  moderate-income families from their homes.

         20                 I understand the need to re-examine

         21  the current zoning of the area. However, I'm

         22  skeptical of the effectiveness of any change because

         23  of the frequency with which variances are granted.

         24                 These variances have allowed several

         25  oversized and inappropriate developments to move
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          2  forward. The Department of City Planning should take

          3  a stronger role in the process by which variances

          4  are reviewed.

          5                 Most recently the Board of Standards

          6  and Appeals approved the Philip Johnson building at

          7  328 Spring Street for a zoning variance. Even with

          8  the proposed zoning changes, this building would not

          9  be as of right.

         10                 Furthermore, the Department of City

         11  Planning made the specific decision not to object to

         12  this proposed development. If the City agency that

         13  is charged with zoning does not stand with

         14  conviction behind its decisions, the neighborhood is

         15  left unprotected and the Department of City Planning

         16  engenders a vote of no confidence by City residents.

         17                 Finally, it is my understanding that

         18  this proposal could be considered as one

         19  application, although the two sections of Hudson

         20  Square are in close proximity, their needs are

         21  vastly different.

         22                 I urge you to consider these zoning

         23  changes as two applications, each of which should be

         24  discretely reviewed as I previously described.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 MS. BORDONARO: My name is Katy

          3  Bordonaro, and I appreciate the opportunity to

          4  testify today. As President of the West Village

          5  Houses Tenants Association, I represent the 1,000

          6  plus middle-income New Yorkers who live in West

          7  Village Houses, the only Mitchell-Lama rental

          8  complex in Community Board 2, the 42 building

          9  stretch from Morton to Bank Streets between

         10  Washington and West and lie directly north of the

         11  Hudson Square rezoning district.

         12                 On July 1st, 2002, the owners of West

         13  Village Houses exercise their legal right to begin

         14  to remove West Village Houses from the government

         15  subsidy program which has provided decent affordable

         16  housing for teachers, policemen, firemen, postal

         17  workers, union members and small business people in

         18  our neighborhoods.

         19                 Moreover, the owners of West Village

         20  Houses have stated that they plan to triple the

         21  rents of the tenants at West Village Houses. Such an

         22  increase represents 60 percent of the average gross

         23  income at West Village Houses and is tantamount to

         24  an eviction notice.

         25                 All of this is background to our
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          2  opposition to the Hudson Square rezoning as approved

          3  by the City Planning Commission.

          4                 The final environmental impact

          5  statement claims that the rezoning would not have

          6  significant residential displacement effects. This

          7  assertion is in direct contrast to the findings of

          8  our expert Peter Marcuse who says, "residential

          9  displacement will probably be the most important

         10  socioeconomic impact of the proposal."

         11                 Mr. Marcuse's research results and

         12  impressive credentials are attached to this

         13  statement.

         14                 The environmental impact statement

         15  goes on to provide economic analysis based on the

         16  households in the area but not on the incomes of

         17  West Village Houses which are limited by the New

         18  York City Department of Housing Preservation and

         19  Development to a much lower level than the incomes

         20  of the surrounding area.

         21                 Marcuse shows that the average

         22  projected rent in the Hudson Square rezoning area

         23  could only be supported by an income twice as high

         24  as the average income at West Village Houses.

         25                 The City Planning Department's
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          2  analysis of the secondary residential displacement

          3  which will result from their zoning changes is

          4  fatally flawed. On behalf of the 1,000 plus

          5  residents of West Village Houses, I ask the City

          6  Council to follow the recommendations of Community

          7  Board 2 and our City Council member, and find no

          8  change necessary in the northern section of the

          9  rezoning area to protect the valuable housing

         10  resource of West Village Houses.

         11                 MR. BENNETT: Yes, I am Albert

         12  Bennett, and President of the Morton Street Block

         13  Association. My primary purpose in being here is to

         14  put my organization on record as being in opposition

         15  to the Section 1 and 4 of LU No. 448, regarding the

         16  northern section, which I find it very difficult to

         17  refer to as Hudson Square, it's really Greenwich

         18  Village.

         19                 Just one very minor footnote. I'm

         20  also a public member of the Landmarks Committee of

         21  Community Board 2, Manhattan, and I would like to

         22  point out that this northern section is part of a

         23  maritime mile historic district that is under very

         24  serious consideration by the Landmarks Commission

         25  for creation as a historic district.

                                                            117

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          4                 Any questions from Committee members?

          5                 The next panel is David Reck; Adam

          6  Friedman; Doris Diether; and Leslie Fitzpatrick.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Mr. Chairman?

          8  Mr. Chairman, at this time, as you know, I have a

          9  pressing personal matter back home that I have to

         10  attend to, and I've spoken to my other members and

         11  they have given me their consent that I will be able

         12  to cast my vote at this time on all matters that

         13  will be voted upon at the end of this hearing, and I

         14  vote in the affirmative.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: So noted. I'm

         16  sorry. Please.

         17                 MR. RECK: My name is David Reck, and

         18  as of July 1st I became Chair of Community Board 2's

         19  Zoning Committee, and it's my great pleasure, I come

         20  here today to talk about the Hudson Square rezoning.

         21                 Over the past couple of years the

         22  rezoning plan has been the subject of a great number

         23  of meetings with City Planning and community groups

         24  and property owners and Council Member Quinn and her

         25  representatives, and also there have been a number
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          2  of zoning variances in the area which have also

          3  spurred on a great deal of debate about this zoning

          4  plan. So, I assure you that it is talked about a

          5  great deal at the Board.

          6                 And in the discussions it was clear

          7  that the northern end and the southern end have

          8  different characters and have different issues, so

          9  in fact the Board issued four separate resolutions

         10  on the two areas.

         11                 In the interest of brevity, I won't

         12  read the entire resolution, but I would like to just

         13  talk briefly about what the debate was and what the

         14  final resolve.

         15                 In the southern area there was no

         16  opposition per se to the zoning revision, though

         17  there was some debate at the Board as to what the

         18  exact mechanism might be.

         19                 The Board itself did wind up

         20  supporting the C 6 2A, but did advise City Planning

         21  to investigate other alternatives, and one that

         22  wasn't discussed for the southern area was the M X6

         23  zone that is proposed in the north.

         24                 So, on the southern area,"Therefore,

         25  be it resolved that Community Board 2, Manhattan,
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          2  approves the amendment to the zoning map to change

          3  the zoning to C 6 2A but request additional blocks

          4  be added to the rezoned area and that prior to any

          5  enactment of any changes City Planning should

          6  reconsider an overlaid district similar to that

          7  being proposed for the northern area of the Hudson

          8  Square rezoning proposal."

          9                 In the northern end of this, this was

         10  certainly far more controversial, the concerns there

         11  had an awful lot to do with the preservation of jobs

         12  and industry there, and also there was a great deal

         13  of concern about the impacts on Washington Square

         14  Village.

         15                 I will read you the final therefore

         16  be it resolved. "Therefore, be it resolved, that

         17  Community Board 2, Manhattan, does not approve the

         18  rezoning of these blocks to a special mixed use

         19  district which would allow residential; and

         20                 Be it further resolved, that most of

         21  the residential would come from conversions not new

         22  development, and the concern is that the

         23  displacement of a significant amount of jobs as

         24  owners warehouse and sell their buildings; and

         25                 Be it further resolved, that the
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          2  community feels strongly that the proposed zoning

          3  would not create a mixed use district but instead

          4  would force the area headlong into residential

          5  conversions thus destroying the very fabric of the

          6  neighborhoods that they wish to be preserved."

          7                 Now, at the full Board meeting where

          8  this resolution was passed, this was highly debated

          9  and it was a split vote. However, 21 Board members

         10  voted in favor of the resolution, and 15 voted in

         11  opposition. And I also have included in my package

         12  another resolution from the environment committee

         13  that brings up quite a number of the environmental

         14  issues there; things such as the sewer and water

         15  lines and potential pollution from previous

         16  industrial uses.

         17                 Certainly, I would encourage you on

         18  behalf of the Board to move forward on this,

         19  whatever your resolution may be. Certainly the Board

         20  feels strongly that the southern area should be

         21  rezoned, and feels that the northern area should

         22  not. Thank you very much.

         23                 MS. FITZPATRICK: My name is Leslie

         24  Fitzpatrick. I'm here today on behalf of the

         25  Greenwich Village Society for Historic Preservation,
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          2  the largest membership organization in Greenwich

          3  Village, whose mission is to preserve the unique

          4  architectural and historic character of Greenwich

          5  Village and the East Village.

          6                 GVSHP has several concerns about the

          7  proposed Hudson Square rezoning.

          8                 As most of those concerns relate to

          9  the northern section of the proposed rezoning rather

         10  than the south, we join many other groups in calling

         11  for the separation of the two sections into two

         12  separate rezoning proposals.

         13                 This would allow the southern section

         14  to move forward now and the northern section to be

         15  held at least until further examination can be made,

         16  as some of the issues which had been raised in

         17  relation to it.

         18                 The proposed rezoning would have an

         19  important impact upon historic resources in the

         20  area.

         21                 In the southern section, for

         22  instance, lie two federal row houses built in 1820

         23  at 486 and 488 Greenwich Street, which GVSHP and the

         24  New York Landmarks Conservancy have proposed for

         25  landmark designation.
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          2                 The rezoning of the southern section

          3  is to move forward. We hope that it can be

          4  coordinated with an examination of the possibility

          5  of landmarking these structures, as well as

          6  examining other historically significant buildings

          7  within the zone for potential designation.

          8                 Similarly, the northern portion

          9  contains several buildings of historic significance

         10  which should be examined for their eligibility for

         11  landmark designation before any rezoning moves

         12  forward.

         13                 It should be noted that the northern

         14  portion directly abuts the Greenwich Village

         15  Historic District. GVSHP is on record asking the

         16  City to examine the area around this and other

         17  historic districts, to ensure that the zoning is

         18  compatible with the historic district, to ensure

         19  that new development remains in character in terms

         20  of bulk and height.

         21                 As this rezoning could allow

         22  development of a significantly greater height than

         23  currently exists in either the proposed rezoning

         24  area or in the nearby sections of the historic

         25  district, this is a cause for concern.
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          2                 We believe that the zoning of the

          3  area, whether it is new or existing, should be

          4  examined to ensure this compatibility.

          5                 This is one of the things, which

          6  separating out the northern section now, and putting

          7  it on a different track would allow.

          8                 We thus urge the Council to separate

          9  out the northern section from the proposed rezoning

         10  and allow further time for examination and

         11  evaluation of its impact and appropriateness.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Thank you. Good

         14  morning, and thank you for the opportunity to

         15  testify. I'm Adam Friedman, Director of the New York

         16  Industrial Retention Network and I promise to

         17  condense my testimony.

         18                 NYIRN strongly supports the

         19  recommendations of Community Board 2 to both

         20  preserve the character and to save jobs in Hudson

         21  Square, a genuine mixed use neighborhood.

         22                 Their analysis of the impacts and the

         23  risks presented by the City Planning proposal is

         24  particularly insightful.

         25                 Unfortunately, this situation that is
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          2  City Planning's failure to address the ramifications

          3  of its proposed changes for communities and jobs, is

          4  likely to be repeated and to land at the door of the

          5  City Council as City Planning proceeds with

          6  rezonings in Williamsburg, Long Island City and

          7  elsewhere.

          8                 If you could just turn to the second

          9  page and look at the map for a second, this map

         10  which was developed in collaboration with the New

         11  York City Central Labor Council shows the location

         12  and density of unionized manufacturing jobs and the

         13  collision course with some of the City's zoning

         14  proposals, including Hudson Square.

         15                 We go on to the next page. There are

         16  245,000 industrial jobs in New York City. These two

         17  charts give you some idea of both the scale and job

         18  quality. There are almost as many jobs in the

         19  industrial sector as in finance, and the average

         20  quality is superior in terms of wages and health

         21  coverage to jobs in restaurants and retailing.

         22                 Let's just go to the next page.

         23  Community Board 2's analysis of the risk to both the

         24  mixed use character of the neighborhood, as well as

         25  the local economy is right on point. There are 120
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          2  industrial companies employing 3,000 people

          3  operating in Hudson Square, and that we've mapped

          4  two in the larger scale on the final page.

          5                 The M X zoning proposed for the

          6  northern boundary will do nothing to maintain the

          7  balance of uses. Calling M X mixed use is misleading

          8  because it allows residential development

          9  as-of-right.

         10                 The manufacturers will inevitably be

         11  priced out.

         12                 It's kind of like saying that poor

         13  people have a legal right to live in Trump Tower, it

         14  ignores the market. One way of looking at Hudson

         15  Square proposal is as incomplete.

         16                 City Planning states that they want

         17  to retain manufacturing in areas adjacent to the

         18  rezoned portions by maintaining the existing zoning.

         19                 However, as has been demonstrated

         20  again and again, real life development pressures

         21  will seep over the zoning line drawn on the map.

         22                 The City needs new zoning tools and

         23  techniques that allow City Planning to target change

         24  to some areas, such as in this case the southern

         25  boundary, but dampen speculation and displacement in
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          2  adjoining areas.

          3                 For example, they could up zone one

          4  area to encourage office or housing development, but

          5  put more protective zoning in the surrounding area

          6  to dampen gentrification.

          7                 It could and should rein in the Board

          8  of Standards and Appeals. Variances reshape the area

          9  under consideration and defacto rezoned it,

         10  undermining both community and Council input.

         11                 It could map other areas of the City

         12  to secure them for manufacturing and give companies

         13  confidence that they can relocate there and not be

         14  forced to move again in a few years. And it could

         15  impose conversion fees to underwrite efforts to save

         16  jobs.

         17                 Saving jobs cannot be a last-minute

         18  addition to a zoning proposal. In situations similar

         19  to Hudson Square, in the past the City provided

         20  funding to help companies relocate, but this is an

         21  increasingly less viable strategy because there are

         22  fewer areas for them to move to.

         23                 The City Council will see more of

         24  these incomplete proposals as City Planning proceeds

         25  with zoning changes elsewhere.
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          2                 Removing the northern portion of the

          3  proposed zoning change will help send a message to

          4  City Planning that protecting jobs and the character

          5  of communities is important.

          6                 NYIRN is not opposed --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Adam, if you

          8  could please sum up.

          9                 MR. FRIEDMAN: This is, I swear, my

         10  last paragraph.

         11                 We're simply asking that it be well

         12  planned. In this case the potential cost here is

         13  3,000 jobs, so we urge you to support Community

         14  Board 2's position. Thank you.

         15                 MS. DIETHER: Doris Diether, Community

         16  Board 2.

         17                 I was actually the vice chair of the

         18  Zoning Committee when the resolution that was read

         19  this morning was drafted, and I worked on it

         20  extensively.

         21                 Also, two pages of notes on the back

         22  dealing with final scope of work on the EIS were

         23  drafted by me. The proposal, as it came out, was

         24  also approved by, as you know, the Borough

         25  President's Office, who also split the vote as being
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          2  opposed to the north section and in favor of the

          3  south section.

          4                 At the hearings of City Planning,

          5  there were comments made about the fact that the

          6  zoning change would discourage, decrease the number

          7  of variance applications. That hasn't been our

          8  feeling about it. We find that when an area is

          9  rezoned, that the adjoining areas, the manufacturing

         10  areas around that, figure well they really didn't go

         11  far enough, they should have rezoned our area too.

         12  It's really turning into a residential area, and

         13  therefore we should be able to get a variance to

         14  change our building to residential. And this has

         15  been kind of an escalating thing going on.

         16                 The proposed change does not

         17  encourage manufacturing and industrial uses to stay

         18  in the West Village. It encourages the owners of

         19  those buildings to keep the tenants there until the

         20  lease runs out and then refuse to renew the lease,

         21  so they can change to a more profitable residential

         22  use.

         23                 The question was raised about whether

         24  it was not better for the communities to have new

         25  zoning, rather than the series of variances, and the
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          2  zoning was upheld by the City agencies that might be

          3  correct, but the City Planning condition doesn't go

          4  in when a variance application is made and say this

          5  is not in conformity with the zoning and we would

          6  like changes made or upholding the zoning.

          7                 Also, when a project is as-of-right,

          8  the community has no input into the project and in

          9  fact might not even know when it's planned until

         10  either the existing building is torn down and

         11  renovations begin or when ground is broken for a new

         12  structure. When the building had to apply for a

         13  variance, the community gets to participate in the

         14  project.

         15                 For instance, 600 Washington Street

         16  was almost completely redesigned during the

         17  consultation for the community. Really outrageous

         18  proposals can sometimes be stopped or downscaled

         19  during the hearing process, which doesn't exist if

         20  the project is as-of-right.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         23                 Next panel. Jonathan, I'm going to

         24  pronounce this wrong, Jonathan Pokoik; Lisa La

         25  Frieda; and Carol Slater.
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          2                 MR. POKOIK: Good afternoon. My name

          3  is Jonathan Pokoik. I am speaking on behalf of

          4  Steinberg and Pokoik Management Corp. Together with

          5  my partners we own a nine-story building located at

          6  609 Greenwich Street, which is on the southeast

          7  corner of Greenwich and Leroy.

          8                 The building is located in the

          9  northern rezoning area. I appreciate the opportunity

         10  to speak in favor of the rezoning.

         11                 The proposed rezoning would provide

         12  much needed flexibility and use of our property,

         13  particularly given market conditions.

         14                 In August 2001 we lost a major tenant

         15  at 609 Greenwich, Gren for Hire, a film production

         16  company which filed for bankruptcy. That was more

         17  than 23 months ago.

         18                 We've been doing substantial

         19  vacancies in the building for nearly two years now.

         20  We welcome any governmental action that will help

         21  make our property more productive.

         22                 We have not analyzed the competitive

         23  economic benefit of converting the building to

         24  residential use versus continuing to market the

         25  building for commercial or manufacturing use.
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          2                 Such an exercise would not make sense

          3  at this time, because we cannot accurately predict

          4  market conditions at the time such conversion would

          5  be possible.

          6                 Our two remaining tenants in the

          7  building have leases that run through June 2009.

          8                 In fact, we do not even know whether

          9  the building structure lends itself profitably to

         10  residential use, given the location and number of

         11  elevators and the location of other utility stacks

         12  within the building.

         13                 We imagine that many property owners

         14  within the proposed area have long-term commercial

         15  or manufacturing leases that are in much the same

         16  position with respect to the suitability of their

         17  buildings for residential use.

         18                 It is therefore unlikely that all of

         19  the buildings within the rezoning area will be

         20  converted to residential use.

         21                 We also note that in the northern

         22  rezoning area, the maximum floor area ratio is not

         23  changing and a height limit of 120 feet is being

         24  imposed.

         25                 At 5 FAR, a medium density floor area
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          2  ratio, with the height limit, large residential

          3  towers are not likely to be built, and existing

          4  non-residential buildings are now likely to be

          5  substantially enlarged.

          6                 Finally, because the rezoning areas

          7  are so small and narrowly focused, approximately six

          8  blocks in the northern rezoning area, three blocks

          9  in the southern, conversions cannot substantially

         10  change the mixed use character of the larger Hudson

         11  Square area.

         12                 Approximately three-quarters of the

         13  Hudson Square area remain zoned for manufacturing

         14  use. We understand that City Planning staff selected

         15  the rezoning area because they already contain

         16  substantial residential use and were areas where

         17  additional residential use would be appropriate.

         18                 Residential use is permitted on some

         19  of the neighboring properties in our area by

         20  variances granted from the New York City Board of

         21  Standards and Appeals.

         22                 For example, a variance that's

         23  granted for residential use on the property

         24  immediately to the south of 609 Greenwich seems like

         25  a more consistent approach to rezone an area for
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          2  residential use where it is appropriate and not

          3  leave Land Use decisions to a parcel-by-parcel

          4  approach that is necessarily practiced by the BSA.

          5                 This does not allow a cumulative

          6  assessment of the impacts on the area of new

          7  residential development or conversion.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Please begin to

          9  sum up.

         10                 MR. POKOIK: In addition, BSA

         11  variances allow modification of bulk regulations

         12  which are not permitted as-of-right in mixed use

         13  areas; therefore, our conclusion is that the

         14  proposed rezoning will give a much needed

         15  flexibility to building owners within the area while

         16  substantially not changing the use character of the

         17  neighborhood.

         18                 It will allow badly needed housing

         19  and construction in small defined areas where it is

         20  appropriate while preserving the manufacturing uses

         21  in the surrounding Hudson Square area. Thank you,

         22  again, for the opportunity to speak.

         23                 MS. LA FRIEDA: Good afternoon. My

         24  name is Lisa La Frieda. I am a partner in a company

         25  called Pat La Frieda Wholesale Meat Company, located
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          2  in Greenwich Village for 92 years. We are located on

          3  the corner of Leroy Street and Washington Street.

          4                 I am also the owner of the block

          5  front on Leroy Street, the north side of the street

          6  between Washington and Greenwich Street, one block

          7  front in this proposal in this rezoning. We are in

          8  favor of this rezoning because we do not want to

          9  fight variances anymore. It does stop the height of

         10  buildings from going farther than 120 feet.

         11                 We are used to a mixed use area.

         12                 We know that the West Village Houses

         13  have absolutely nothing to do with this rezoning, it

         14  will not change the West Village Houses. In fact,

         15  the West Village Houses really do not like the mixed

         16  use area. In the last two years I have seen them put

         17  two businesses out of business; one being a mechanic

         18  shop, and one also being a restaurant.

         19                 Just recently a restaurant is about

         20  to open. Attached to my letter you will see all the

         21  stipulations that they wrote to this restaurant,

         22  they actually told the owner he couldn't use his

         23  front door for his patrons. He must use the side

         24  door.

         25                 I don't understand why they do this
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          2  to people. They don't like us in the neighborhood.

          3  We are not going to lose jobs by this rezoning. This

          4  rezoning will only protect us, and allows us to

          5  remain manufacturing or commercial or go

          6  residential. La Frieda Meats has no intention of

          7  moving or developing their property. We accept the

          8  mixed use zoning, we just don't accept the

          9  variances.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 MS. SLATER: Good afternoon, Chairman

         12  and members of the Committee. My name is Carol

         13  Slater, from the law firm of Slater and Beckerman,

         14  and we are representing Koppers Chocolate. To my

         15  right is Jeff Alexander, who is also signed up to

         16  speak and hopefully you will give him the

         17  opportunity to speak right after me. And Mr.

         18  Alexander is the principal of Koppers Chocolate.

         19                 We've been listening all morning to

         20  the testimony. We find it extremely interesting, and

         21  I think what you have before you are three property

         22  owners on the north side of the proposed rezoning,

         23  all who are appearing in support of the rezoning.

         24                 City Planning allowed me the liberty

         25  to use their map, and if you look at it, I'll point
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          2  out to you, that each one of these owners,

          3  specifically my client, but I also see that 609

          4  Greenwich shares it as well as Lisa LaFrieda and

          5  LaFrieda Meats, are surrounded by residential uses.

          6  So, if I can have your -- can I speak here and be

          7  heard? I'll just point it out. If I can just draw

          8  your attention to the map which is behind me, is

          9  that Koppers Chocolate is on Clarkson Street, it

         10  represents a small little purple, about a 50 by 100

         11  square foot lot. To the right of it is a large

         12  yellow square. To the left of it, which says vacant

         13  building is also all residential. So, that Mr.

         14  Alexander is surrounded by residential uses.

         15                 The gentlemen to my left who just

         16  spoke, who is at 609 Greenwich Street is also

         17  surrounded by residential uses, as well as La

         18  Frieda, who is on this block front also, all next to

         19  her, it's been granted over periods of time -- what

         20  has been granted over a period of time is

         21  residential use immediately adjacent to

         22  manufacturing uses.

         23                 We're appearing in support of the

         24  rezoning, and hopefully at the end of our testimony

         25  the Committee will see some good reason why it
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          2  should rezone the northern portion and if it

          3  proceeds not to rezone the northern portion at least

          4  do something for these property owners who have had

          5  businesses there for many years and now are

          6  completely surrounded on both sides by residential

          7  use.

          8                 Support of a rezoning, even if it's a

          9  little rezoning in the northern area, makes good

         10  Land Use and planning sense. There's good reasons

         11  why Clarkson Street and my client's property should

         12  be rezoned to the mixed use and residential use, and

         13  clearly would be within the scope of the project

         14  under CEQR.

         15                 Let me tell you a little about

         16  Koppers Chocolate. It's a business which has been in

         17  New York City for over 50 years -- 70 years. It

         18  manufactures extremely high-end chocolate. It

         19  manufactures chocolate for private labels, for Sachs

         20  Fifth Avenue, Neiman Marcus, Sabars, Dean and

         21  Deluca. We have appeared before every City agency

         22  over the past four or five years representing

         23  Koppers Chocolate to prevent, encourage --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Jeff, do you want

         25  to speak also? So, since your time is up and you're
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          2  referring to him, Jeff, why don't you speak?

          3                 We found his slip.

          4                 MR. ALEXANDER: Hi. I'm Jeff

          5  Alexander, Koppers Chocolate. We own the building at

          6  39 Clarkson Street in which we operate a chocolate

          7  manufacturing company on our 30,000 square feet.

          8                 I guess the main point I'd like to

          9  make is, if you divide this rezoning into two

         10  parcels, I think it would be only fair if you could

         11  extend it just that one block, or half a block where

         12  we are on Clarkson Street, because for us the damage

         13  has already been done. We moved into this area

         14  because it was a manufacturing zone, and over the

         15  years we are completely surrounded by residential

         16  users. They complain about the noise, the smells,

         17  there's cars constantly in my loading docks, and

         18  it's really impossible for me to operate there

         19  effectively, and yet, if I would like to move, I

         20  can't sell the building to another manufacturer or

         21  lease, because no one wants to be in the same boat.

         22                 So, I think rezoning would be

         23  appropriate. If it's a problem in the north, at

         24  least you should extend that, the southern parcel,

         25  about half a block to our block.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 MS. SLATER: And if I could just add

          4  one thing, immediately across the street is an

          5  entire block front of R 6, and I'll show it to you

          6  on the City Planning Commission map. So, we ask that

          7  Clarkson Street be rezoned, be kept in the rezoning,

          8  and perhaps whatever decision you make regarding the

          9  north and south end, that would be entirely within

         10  the scope to apply the rezoning to this block.

         11                 Thank you very much. And if I can

         12  just show it to you on City Planning's map.

         13                 This is Clarkson Street, which we've

         14  been talking about. If you look on the color key

         15  from City Planning, the manufacturing use is totally

         16  surrounded by yellow or by residential uses. Across

         17  the street is an R 6 district.

         18                 Thank you very much, we ask for your

         19  consideration.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Next panel is

         21  Robert Golden; John Mele; Michael Slattery. That is

         22  the final panel on this issue.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Mr. Golden had

         24  to leave, I believe, but left his testimony.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: He's from the

          3  Downtown School.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And John, he must

          5  have filled it out twice.

          6                 That closes the public hearing on

          7  this item. We will now skip again, unfortunately, to

          8  Land Use Number 427, 428, 429, C030325 ZMX;

          9  C030326ZSX; C030327ZSX, an application by Fordham

         10  University for an amendment of a zoning map changing

         11  from a C8-1 district to an R 6 district, property

         12  bounded by Crotona Avenue and other streets. The

         13  application includes two special permit

         14  applications.

         15                 MR. BYRNE: Good morning, Mr. Chair,

         16  members of the Committee. My name is Bryan Bryne,

         17  and I'm Vice President for Administration at Fordham

         18  University, and I'm representing the University on

         19  this proposed regional parking facility, also known

         20  as A Parking Garage.

         21                 I'd like to make a few introductory

         22  comments and then turn it over to our counsel to

         23  describe the particular zoning changes that have to

         24  be put in place for this facility.

         25                 This is a parking garage that will
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          2  provide both accessory parking for the University,

          3  as well as short-term public parking to relieve

          4  traffic congestion on the East Fordham Road and

          5  Belmont Community neighborhood, which has been

          6  seriously aggravated by the recent opening of the

          7  Department of, New York State Department of Motor

          8  Vehicles Licensing and Adjudication Center directly

          9  across the street from where this parking garage

         10  will be located.

         11                 The garage is envisioned as having

         12  two phases, the first phase will be a total of 1,248

         13  spaces of which 172 would be for short-term parking,

         14  and if we can afford it ultimately add 299 spaces to

         15  that.

         16                 This would enable us to consolidate

         17  and reclaim parking that we've lost over the years,

         18  and as a result will be able to preserve for a

         19  pledge for every New York City commuting student

         20  that they'd always have a parking place when they

         21  come to park, and it also will be used to provide

         22  parking for a lot of our faculty and staff that work

         23  at the Lincoln Center campus who then use our van

         24  service into Midtown Manhattan, rather than pulling

         25  more parking in there.

                                                            142

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 The facility is supported with five

          3  and three-quarter million dollars with federal

          4  funding, about $700,000 worth of state funding,

          5  about $3.3 million in City funding and we will bond

          6  the rest of the money through the Dormitory

          7  Authority for the University's obligation.

          8                 The project has received the approval

          9  of the community board, as well as community

         10  organizations including our neighbors, the Botanical

         11  Garden. It will not be, as you can see, I think the

         12  rendering is up there, the parking garage will not

         13  be the typical structure. It will be designed to

         14  match our collegiate Gothic campus in the Bronx.

         15                 And with that, perhaps Deidre could

         16  explain to you the specific actions that need to be

         17  taken.

         18                 MS. CARSON: Now, the boring stuff. My

         19  name is Deidre Carson, I'm a member of Greenberg

         20  Tralrig. We are the attorneys representing Fordham

         21  University on this application. I'm going to stand

         22  and use the boards, because I think a picture is

         23  worth a thousand words here.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: But you can't,

         25  because if you leave the microphone. This is being
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          2  taped, they cannot hear you.

          3                 Oh, you're going to have a portable

          4  mic? Why didn't we have that before?

          5                 MS. CARSON: Okay, unlike a lot of the

          6  community facilities you were talking about this

          7  morning, Fordham has its own campus which is

          8  bordered on the north by Southern Boulevard, on the

          9  south by East Fordham Road, and on the west by Metro

         10  North. It's an 80-acre campus, which has been in

         11  existence since the 1840s.

         12                 Over the years Fordham had developed

         13  15 acres of this as open lot parking, was located

         14  here, here and here. Over the years they've needed

         15  to reclaim some of that for construction of a

         16  dormitory, which was done with this facility, and

         17  they relocated some of the parking lots over

         18  temporary lot on this side of the campus.

         19                 But the goal here is to keep the

         20  parking all in this location because it's the most

         21  accessible to transportation, highway

         22  transportation, and it keeps this part of the campus

         23  a green oasis, a very beautiful and lush place of

         24  repose and serenity.

         25                 So, the proposal is to take all of
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          2  the existing open lot parking and consolidate it

          3  into a multi-level parking facility. In order to do

          4  this, three actions were required. Two were required

          5  actually for Fordham's purpose. One was required for

          6  the public parking component that Dr. Byrne

          7  described to you.

          8                 A small area in this location, which

          9  is partially on the Fordham Campus, and partially is

         10  private land, is zoned CA2, which does not permit

         11  community facility uses. So, we're proposing to draw

         12  down from the campus the R 6 zoning that already

         13  exists on the rest of the Fordham campus, down to

         14  East Fordham Road and then lay over it a C 2 3

         15  zoning district, that will permit us to have a

         16  public parking entrance off of East Fordham Road at

         17  this location. That's completely separate from the

         18  existing entrance for all accessory parking for the

         19  University, which is at this location on the north.

         20                 So, the public parking of 172 spaces

         21  will enter here. The DMV facility that Dr. Bryne

         22  referenced as having given rise to some of the

         23  demand is located right across East Fordham Road,

         24  from that entrance.

         25                 Users of the accessory parking
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          2  facility will continue to enter off of Southern

          3  Boulevard, with some exceptions. During peak hours

          4  we've had to make some slight adjustments to get

          5  people in and out of the campus for an hour in the

          6  morning and an hour in the afternoon. But apart from

          7  that, the existing accessory parking patterns of

          8  travel will remain unchanged.

          9                 The section action that is required

         10  after the remapping is a special permit to permit a

         11  very large accessory parking facility. The maximum

         12  permitted size accessory parking facility that you

         13  can achieve as-of-right, will accommodate 225

         14  spaces. We want to get to ultimately, if the second

         15  phase is built, 1,374.

         16                 That sounds like a lot of spaces but

         17  actually it just replaces what now exists on the

         18  campus and puts it all in a single facility.

         19                 The last action is a special permit

         20  for the public parking garage, which is slightly

         21  larger than is permitted as of right. We're allowed

         22  150 as-of-right, and we're seeking 172.

         23                 I'm going to skip over this. This is

         24  just an enlargement to show the entrances and exits

         25  and the traffic patterns. You've seen the rendering,
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          2  so you get a sense of the way the exterior has been

          3  designed to refer to the collegiate Gothic within

          4  which most of the rest of the campus has been built.

          5                 The materials will be stone or

          6  stone-like, it may be done in panels, but they will

          7  have a masonry or stone character to them.

          8                 There will be landscaping all around

          9  the border of the facility and at this corner, which

         10  is upside down, I wish I had the photos now because

         11  what you would see is the open parking lot. It was a

         12  true eye-sore, and what we will end up with now is a

         13  landscapes entrance at East Fordham Road and

         14  Southern Boulevard, which will not only announce

         15  your entrance into the University, but also announce

         16  it into the downtown area of this very, very vibrant

         17  commercial district along East Fordham Road going up

         18  to the Metro North hub and the bus station there,

         19  and there will be, with the assistance of the

         20  Botanical Garden and selecting our trees, this will

         21  all be fully landscaped. There will be landscaping.

         22                 So, those are the three actions.

         23  There is the mapping change to make the uses

         24  conforming, and by the way in that area that's being

         25  remapped, there are four private homes that are now
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          2  non-conforming uses, all of which will be made

          3  conforming by the map change. And then there are the

          4  two special permits.

          5                 Are there any questions?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: First of all, I

          7  just wanted to mention that this lies within Council

          8  Member Oliver Koppell's district and he is in favor

          9  of the application, and the Borough President as

         10  well and I understand the community board voted

         11  unanimously in favor of the zoning change in the two

         12  special permits?

         13                 MS. CARSON: That's right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions

         15  from my Committee members? No. Thank you.

         16                 MS. CARSON: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Is there anybody

         18  to sign up to speak on this issue? If not, I'll

         19  close the public hearing aspect of it, and we will

         20  move on.

         21                 As a courtesy to my colleague Council

         22  Member Alan Gerson, we will proceed to the sidewalk

         23  cafe applications that are in his district.

         24                 I understand that there are three

         25  applications but there is one person representing
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          2  all three; is that correct?

          3                 Mr. Kelly, is he here?

          4                 MR. KELLY: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay. And you are

          6  going to represent all three, okay.

          7                 And it's Land Use No. 4660223525NTCM,

          8  petitioned by Mr. G. Restaurant Corporation to

          9  establish, maintain and operate an unenclosed

         10  sidewalk cafe located at 122 Mulberry Street.

         11                 Land Use No. 46720035260TCM,

         12  petitioned by Bonar Nota to establish, maintain and

         13  operate an unenclosed sidewalk cafe located at 120

         14  Mulberry Street.

         15                 And Land Use No. 46820035261TCM,

         16  petitioned by Fratelli Restaurant, Incorporated, to

         17  establish, maintain and operate an unenclosed

         18  sidewalk cafe located at 115 Mulberry Street.

         19                 MR. KELLY: Good afternoon. My name is

         20  Michael Kelly. I am speaking with Mr. Janosek, who

         21  informed me that all three sidewalk cafes started

         22  operating prematurely. They have now stopped. They

         23  have taken in their tables and chairs, and they're

         24  agreeing to operate in the future, according to all

         25  the laws. That's it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Alan.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chair. Thank you for your courtesy in regard to this

          5  matter, and thank you for your courtesy in allowing

          6  me to be a guest at your hearing. And thank you for

          7  your leadership on all Land Use matters affecting

          8  our district and our City that you have so ably

          9  shown. Really appreciate it.

         10                 Mr. Kelly, I appreciate your comments

         11  as well.

         12                 I think you know your clients know

         13  that we have chosen, and I have chosen not to oppose

         14  these applications, and to in effect facilitate

         15  their going forward, and I do so as, and I believe

         16  my colleagues in the Council will join me in this

         17  sentiment and action as we proceed as a sign of good

         18  faith, first that the conditions which you just

         19  mentioned will in fact be complied with going

         20  forward.

         21                 MR. KELLY: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Secondly, and

         23  just as importantly, that these restaurants will

         24  participate in and abide by an ongoing process,

         25  specifically the ongoing mediation process which my
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          2  office has launched in coordination with the

          3  appropriate City agencies and in cooperation or with

          4  the involvement of LIMA, the Little Italy Merchants

          5  Association, and LINA, the Little Italy Neighbors

          6  Association, to attempt to reach resolution on

          7  matters pertaining to sidewalk and street use which

          8  affects an impact on both residents and businesses.

          9                 One of the issues that we will be

         10  considering will be strictures or conditions on

         11  sidewalk cafes in that area on Mulberry Street.

         12                 And as you also know, this

         13  interrelates with the hours of operation,

         14  interrelates with respect on the community, with the

         15  hours of operation and the conduct of this Mulberry

         16  Street Mall, wherein the street is closed, and

         17  allowing further extensions of sidewalk use by

         18  restaurants.

         19                 This process is ongoing, although we

         20  hope to reach recommendations and conclusions, Mr.

         21  Chair, in the very, very near future.

         22                 We have considered opposing any

         23  sidewalk cafe applications until the process

         24  concluded.

         25                 However, as I said to you, as a sign
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          2  of good faith, we're willing to go forward and allow

          3  these applications to proceed in the process, in

          4  consideration also of the needs of the restaurants,

          5  which we do want to support, and the good

          6  recommendations of the community board and its Chair

          7  Lisa La Frieda. But it's my hope and expectation

          8  that your clients, along with the other restaurants

          9  will, as I said, abide by the results of the

         10  mediation, which means both sides will have agreed

         11  to whatever situation is worked out, and not attempt

         12  to kind of, even take advantage of the fact that

         13  you've got your applications in before the process

         14  has been concluded. Is that an affirmative?

         15                 MR. KELLY: That's an affirmative.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.

         17                 So, maybe I'll quit while I'm ahead,

         18  and also in the interest of time. And just let me

         19  say, Mr. Chair, Little Italy is a very special

         20  place, as we all know, and we want to preserve the

         21  special character which makes it so attractive to

         22  the entire city, as well as to the immediate

         23  community, and what makes it so attractive is the

         24  fact that you have an authentic residential

         25  community and an authentic commercial community
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          2  living side-by-side and we need to find ways and

          3  conditions to satisfy both sectors of the one

          4  community, and that's what this process is all

          5  about, so we can have a thriving commercial sector

          6  at the same time as a residential community where

          7  people have a satisfactory quality of life and

          8  conditions with livability with regard to noise and

          9  accessibility.

         10                 I think we can have it both ways, and

         11  with your cooperation and with your clients, we

         12  will.

         13                 MR. KELLY: Thank you. I appreciate

         14  it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chair.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Just to sum up,

         18  in terms of the A-Frames and the --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Hold on a

         20  second, Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: In terms of the

         22  A-Frames, the planters and the railings that are

         23  there now that are in violation, they will be

         24  removed?

         25                 MR. KELLY: The railings are attached
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          2  to the old concrete platforms that were installed,

          3  and they're not removable. I don't know if he wants

          4  them removed.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I can't hear you.

          6                 MR. KELLY: I don't know if he wants

          7  them removed. They've been there with the platform

          8  for years.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: What we'll do is

         10  we'd like to have some follow-up conversation. But

         11  be assured that there are going to be unannounced

         12  inspections, and this Chair takes a very dim view of

         13  people that are getting a public benefit, whether

         14  they be individuals or businesses, that they are

         15  getting a public benefit and then still flout the

         16  law.

         17                 MR. KELLY: Okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And I think

         19  Councilman Gerson is being very generous. I will not

         20  be so generous if this comes up again and these

         21  violations are still existing. Rest assured that it

         22  will be denied in the future if you don't pay

         23  attention to the laws.

         24                 MR. KELLY: We were inspected last

         25  week and they had all of the tables and chairs in,
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          2  and they're going to keep it that way until they get

          3  their permits.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Excuse me, Mr.

          5  Chair. Upon the advice of our very able staff, I

          6  should specify in just a little bit more detail one

          7  aspect of the mediation to make sure, Mr. Kelly,

          8  that we're on the same wavelength, and that is the

          9  hours of operation. This will be one of the topics

         10  of the mediation between the merchants and the

         11  residents. And, again, without prejudice to the

         12  outcome which the mediation will reach, we would

         13  expect, and I ask you, would your clients again, as

         14  part of abiding by the community mediation process,

         15  if there are arrangements or further restrictions in

         16  hours of operations, again, reached jointly by the

         17  process involving the LIMA or the LINA group,

         18  because any mediation would have to involve a coming

         19  together of both parties, that we would expect and

         20  your clients and these three restaurants in

         21  particular, as part of abiding by the agreement, to

         22  abide by any narrowing of hours of operation.

         23                 MR. KELLY: They will.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. Thank

         25  you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you, sir.

          3                 Is there anybody who wishes to speak

          4  on any of those three items? If not, I will close

          5  the public hearing on that aspect.

          6                 Alan.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you for

          8  reminding me, Mr. Chair, as long as I have the

          9  microphone. Just very briefly, I want to commend

         10  once again you and Chair Katz for your leadership on

         11  the issue of community use group reform, and the

         12  entire Committee along with you on your I think

         13  historic vote today.

         14                 I just want to take a brief moment to

         15  call upon you and plead with you, though I think

         16  it's probably unnecessary, to continue to exercise

         17  your leadership to cover the remaining areas in need

         18  of reform. Specifically in Lower Manhattan we have

         19  the need, and my esteemed colleagues from whom I

         20  always look for guidance is nodding her head, so

         21  I'll emphasize, we have the need to deal with the

         22  issue of institutional facilities, for large

         23  facilities of growing institutions within

         24  residential or mixed use areas. In effect, the

         25  repeated application of the community bonus as a
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          2  matter of right is rewriting the Land Use code and

          3  making a bonus situation the rule rather than an

          4  exception. It has resulted in an ongoing civic war

          5  between institution, community which serves neither

          6  institution nor a community, what would serve both,

          7  as well as the imperative of good land use public

          8  policy would be some sort of an equivalent of a

          9  special permit review process which makes sure that

         10  any of these type of facilities for large

         11  institutions, after an institution has used minimum

         12  threshold bonus, receives scrutiny to assure that

         13  new facilities comport with architectural, historic,

         14  environmental and youth needs of the surrounding

         15  communities, and that would serve our entire city,

         16  as well as the communities impacted.

         17                 So, I look forward, I call upon you

         18  to continue your innovative and creative leadership

         19  and tackle this issue and I assure you that I will

         20  look forward to working closely with you on that.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I appreciate your

         23  comments. And rest assured, you weren't here when I

         24  made the comments earlier, that this is albeit only

         25  the first step, and that there are many more things
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          2  that we have to do in terms of resolving and

          3  changing, amending the zoning code as it relates to

          4  community facilities. But we will continue.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And finally,

          6  Mr. Chair, as long as I have the microphone, it's a

          7  dangerous thing to take --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We do have other

          9  hearings, Alan.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I know. As the

         11  neighboring district to the south end of the Hudson

         12  Square area, I just want to endorse the position of

         13  Council Member Quinn. The area lies within her

         14  district, but will impact on ours, and I think her

         15  direction is the direction of wisdom that will

         16  benefit both of our districts, and I just wanted to

         17  endorse that.

         18                 Thank you. And now I really am

         19  finished.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay. And now I

         21  believe Council Member Quinn has something.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I wanted to

         23  just thank Council Member Gerson for his support.

         24  It's great to have the person who abuts your

         25  district almost be in constant agreement with. So,
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          2  thank you. And anything that I can do to be helpful

          3  with the sidewalk cafe issues, because as

          4  Chairperson Avella knows, I have a couple of those

          5  in my district that have been issues. So, anything I

          6  can do to be helpful as you move forward on that,

          7  please let me know. And thank you for your work on

          8  that as well. It's a good model for other

          9  neighborhoods.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay, next item

         11  on the agenda is Land Use No. 394, C020124 ZMQ.

         12  Application by the Executive Motor Inn, pursuant to

         13  Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter

         14  for an amendment of the zoning map, establishing

         15  within an existing R3-2 district, a C2-2 district,

         16  founded by Craston Street and others.

         17                 While the applicant is setting up, we

         18  have one more street cafe application to do after

         19  this. We will take like a five-minute break, and

         20  then we will do the public hearing on street

         21  furniture.

         22                 MR. POPIN: Good morning. Jon Popin

         23  from Sheldon Lobel and Associates.

         24                 Good morning, Chairman Avella, and

         25  Councilman, Councilperson.
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          2                 The proposal is to rezone an

          3  approximate 34,000 -- 32,000 square foot portion of

          4  block 12134, the Springfield Gardens section of

          5  Queens, bordered by North Conduit Avenue, 136

          6  Avenue, Cranston Avenue and 138th Avenue, from an

          7  existing R 3 2 zoning district, to an R 3 2 zoning

          8  district with commercial overlay C2-2. The existing

          9  use on the property now is a three-story 44-unit

         10  hotel, and AAA rated hotel, and the commercial

         11  overlay would create a conforming use of the hotel,

         12  which is currently on the site by way of variance

         13  granted in 1980 by the Board of Standards and

         14  Appeals, and renewed in 1995.

         15                 The applicant is experiencing trouble

         16  securing mortgage financing for upgrading of the

         17  hotel and remodeling of the hotel, due to the fact

         18  that the property is there by way of a termed

         19  variance and a rezoning would make the property

         20  there as-of-right which would allow them then to

         21  secure financing to do remodeling.

         22                 With respect to a Land Use rationale,

         23  we believe that the C 22 zoning district is

         24  appropriate for several reasons. One, the property

         25  fronts along North Conduit Avenue, a highly
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          2  trafficked road. The property is separated from the

          3  southern parkway only by Conduit. There are many

          4  commercial C 22 zoning buildings up and down North

          5  Conduit. As you can see in blue, our property and

          6  the site, study site is in purple, would just extend

          7  or prolong the existing C 22 zoning district.

          8                 There are also C 22 zoning districts

          9  along Rockaway Boulevard. And if I pull this away

         10  and give you a broader view, you can see along the

         11  blue being C 22, you can see commercial overlays all

         12  along Rockaway Boulevard, and along the Conduit as

         13  well.

         14                 So, that is the proposal and I would

         15  entertain any questions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The community

         17  board approved the application and so did the

         18  Borough President?

         19                 MR. POPIN: Yes, that's correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Now, the Borough

         21  President had two modifications; do you have any

         22  comments on the modifications?

         23                 MR. POPIN: No.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Or suggested

         25  modifications?
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          2                 MR. POPIN: I know that she suggested,

          3  I guess, to look at the uses along 136th Avenue.

          4  What we can say is that the hotel currently has

          5  absolutely no plan to do any commercial development

          6  along 136th, and it actually serves now the

          7  community in the sense that it is a parking lot for

          8  the hotel, so there is very little going on.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Well, that was

         10  one of the recommendations, that curb cuts not be

         11  permitted on 136th.

         12                 What about her suggestion that the

         13  C2-2 overlay only cover the applicant's property?

         14                 MR. POPIN: And the C2-2 overlay was

         15  modified by the City Planning Commission to scale

         16  back to only cover the applicants property.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions

         18  from Committee members?

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 Is there anybody signed up to speak

         21  on this item? If not, I will close the public

         22  hearing on this item. Thank you.

         23                 We will now move to Land Use No. 470,

         24  20035271TCM. An application by ANH Corporation to

         25  establish, maintain and operate an unenclosed
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          2  sidewalk cafe located at 363 Third Avenue.

          3                 You're back again.

          4                 MR. KELLY: Yes. It had to be my lucky

          5  day.

          6                 My name is Michael Kelly. I'm a

          7  representative of ANH Corp. We were turned down by

          8  the community board because they wanted us to leave

          9  ten feet of sidewalk. We left over eight feet, and

         10  the law requires that we leave a minimum of eight

         11  feet, and we'd like to be judged on our application

         12  on that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: This application

         14  lies within Council Member Margarita Lopez'

         15  district. She is in support of the application. We

         16  do understand the issue that Community Board 6

         17  apparently recommended ten feet, but the legal

         18  requirement is eight feet, they cannot in fact ask

         19  for something greater than the legal limit. So, we

         20  understand why the community board took the action

         21  that they did, and we don't necessarily agree with

         22  it at this point.

         23                 MR. KELLY: Okay. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay, is there

         25  anybody signed up to speak on this item? If not,
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          2  I'll close the public hearing on this item.

          3                 And we will take a five-minute break,

          4  and then we will reconvene and do the public hearing

          5  on street furniture, and also an add-on item that

          6  was circulated.

          7                 (Recess taken.)

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I will now

          9  conduct the public hearing on preconsidered Intro.

         10  20035027LLY, commonly referred to as "street

         11  furniture."

         12                 We will also have an add-on that was

         13  circulated earlier, Intro. 466, 20035219LLY,

         14  amendment to the City Charter in relation to

         15  authorizing the Department of Transportation to

         16  extend the expiration date of the bus stop shelter

         17  franchise.

         18                 So, if you wish to speak on any of

         19  those items, please fill out a speaker request form.

         20  I assume some of you who have already filled out

         21  forms may or may not be testifying. When I call your

         22  name just indicate so.

         23                 Dan Biederman.

         24                 MR. PIESARK: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Vanessa Gruer,
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          2  and Steve Stollman. Please come up to the panel.

          3                 MR. PIESARK: Good afternoon. My name

          4  is Dan Piesark. I'm Vice President of Retail

          5  Services at the 34th Street Partnership BID. I'm in

          6  here today for Dan Biederman, who came to represent

          7  the New York City BID Managers Association.

          8                 "Dear Chairman Avella, and the

          9  honorable members of the Zoning and Franchises

         10  Committee:

         11                 On October 28th, 2002, a

         12  representative of the New York City BID Managers

         13  Association delivered testimony regarding the

         14  Coordinator Street Franchise Program being developed

         15  for New York.

         16                 For the record, the BID Managers

         17  Association, which represents the directors of each

         18  of the 45 Business Improvement Districts within the

         19  City would like to reaffirm both our testimony and

         20  our continued support of this legislation.

         21                 The street furniture that will be

         22  created as a result of this program will serve as

         23  true amenities for New Yorkers and will enhance the

         24  pedestrians' experience for those visiting our City

         25  from abroad, throughout the United States and
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          2  abroad.

          3                 We especially commend the framers of

          4  this legislation for their emphasis on aesthetics.

          5  Few things speak as powerfully of the regard

          6  government has for its constituents than its ability

          7  to create public environments that enliven the

          8  spirit and give moments of respite in the hectic

          9  lives of city residents.

         10                 The all-volunteer Boards of Directors

         11  of each of our BIDs well recognize that this

         12  legislation represents a unique and timely

         13  opportunity for the city to raise revenue that is

         14  critically needed to support essential public

         15  programs and services. We applaud the fact that the

         16  legislation will raise revenue for the City in the

         17  very process of improving the quality of life of all

         18  New Yorkers.

         19                 We would like to thank the Council

         20  for its recently enacted legislation regarding the

         21  placement and maintenance of newspaper vending

         22  boxes. We hope that it will reduce the problems

         23  associated with the news boxes located around the

         24  city.

         25                 This new legislation is a wonderful
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          2  next step in the Administration and the Council's

          3  efforts to improve our streetscape.

          4                 We would like to thank Deputy Mayor

          5  Daniel Doctoroff and DOT Commissioner Iris Weinshall

          6  and their respective staffs not only for creating

          7  and forwarding this very important franchise

          8  proposal, but for the inclusive strategies they have

          9  taken to elicit the public input on the goals and

         10  details of the program.

         11                 In the spirit of dialogue, we have

         12  several suggestions that would strengthen franchise

         13  legislation as it affects Business Improvement

         14  Districts.

         15                 Number one, a number of BIDs have

         16  already made significant investments in street

         17  furniture, from newsstands to multi-bin newspaper

         18  boxes, from public pay toilets, to pedestrian

         19  information kiosks, from street lamp holes to street

         20  curbs, from trash receptacles to bike racks. New

         21  York City's BIDs have designed, fabricated,

         22  installed and maintained street furniture that has

         23  embraced by New Yorkers and shoppers, workers and

         24  visitors.

         25                 Our street furniture has also
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          2  withstood both the visual and physical test of time.

          3  These existing improvements should be acknowledged

          4  and preserved under this franchise agreement.

          5                 Given our collective experience in

          6  the design public review process, in evaluating and

          7  maintaining street furniture, in our longstanding

          8  relationship with the Department of Small Business

          9  Services, and a variety of City capital agencies, we

         10  recommend that a member of the BID Managers

         11  Association have a seat on the design advisor

         12  committee called for by this legislation. Such an

         13  appointment will provide the collective experience

         14  of all our BIDs to this important effort.

         15                 Number three. In designing our street

         16  furniture, we have taken special care to assure that

         17  these pieces enhance the design image, flavor and

         18  feel of our respective neighborhoods.

         19                 At the same time, it has been

         20  extremely important to us that the appearance of our

         21  street furniture blends visually with exciting city

         22  lighting and traffic fixtures.

         23                 We, therefore, request that newly

         24  franchised street furniture cited within the City's

         25  BIDs have the ability to be retrofitted so as to
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          2  incorporate the design elements of existing

          3  BID-created street furniture.

          4                 These design elements may include the

          5  use of a distinctive color, building material or

          6  roof top profile.

          7                 In cases where it would not be

          8  practical to meet these local standards, we request

          9  that BIDs be allowed to suggest an alternative

         10  design provided that the BID cover the incremental

         11  costs associated with that change.

         12                 Number four. This coordinated street

         13  furniture legislation will create an unprecedented

         14  opportunity to review the City's site review process

         15  for both newsstands and bus shelters.

         16                 Specifically for bus shelters, we

         17  recommend that DOT affirmatively designate areas

         18  where new bus shelters are indeed needed,

         19  particularly in underserved neighborhoods, prevent

         20  franchises from concentrating too many bus shelters

         21  in areas of the City that have heavy pedestrian use

         22  and traffic.

         23                 Thank you, Chairman Avella, and

         24  members of the Committee, for taking our suggestions

         25  into consideration, and for acknowledging the Bid

                                                            169

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  Managers Association's strong support for this

          3  legislation that is truly a win/win for our members

          4  and for all New Yorkers.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 MR. STOLLMAN: Good day. My name is

          7  Steve Stollman, and I am representing a group called

          8  Local Expression.

          9                 Unfortunately, for us the coordinated

         10  street furniture proposal is not coordinated on the

         11  street or furniture. These are really just billboard

         12  holders.

         13                 We need more beautiful and functional

         14  transit information and other facilities in our

         15  public spaces, and there is a way to build them.

         16                 Unfortunately, current plans called

         17  for a so-called coordinated design, which really

         18  means, if you want to get the most ad revenues from

         19  this, let us make them relatively uniform and

         20  therefore cheaper to build and maintain.

         21                 The question we have to ask ourselves

         22  is, do we want two more decades of streets visually

         23  divided by billboard laden mall furniture?

         24  Especially if we have a chance to generate a city

         25  full of multi-functional, neighborhood-based varied
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          2  and beautiful structures.

          3                 The proposal being considered by the

          4  City Council is the same one that was drafted on

          5  behalf of and by the billboard industry to perfectly

          6  correspond to their current operations and

          7  preferences, and it was already rejected once for

          8  good reasons.

          9                 What we need is real coordination.

         10  The billboard industry needs to scatter their sign

         11  holders as widely as it can, to maximize the number

         12  of sites and ads. Even more damaging is their genius

         13  at reducing or eliminating entirely the labor factor

         14  to minimize costs.

         15                 From our point of view, though, what

         16  happens, what works on highways and country roads

         17  does not work well here. Our streets are complex

         18  social and physical environments, and especially in

         19  places like New York City they cry out for the many

         20  kinds of help that can be made available only

         21  through a local human presence.

         22                 It is the single best way we have to

         23  fully access, engage and beneficially use some of

         24  our most vital shared resources.

         25                 Bringing the human factor into all
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          2  this enables real functional coordination with safe

          3  attended toilets, weatherized transit stations,

          4  usable by buses, car poolers, et cetera, housing an

          5  assortment of vendors possibly bolstered by a

          6  variety of local volunteer attendants.

          7                 More important for us, the presence

          8  of a proprietor guarantees that these locations do

          9  not become a targeted misuse, so they can provide a

         10  little heat in the freezing cold, a fan in the

         11  warmer weather, and a comfortable place to sit down

         12  sometimes too, with tasteful, useful directory ads,

         13  and neighborhood news and artwork instead of

         14  screaming appeals to elitism.

         15                 This modern way to provide sidewalk

         16  amenities and turn a little profit on the side began

         17  here with bus shelters in 1974 in the depth of our

         18  last crunching physical distress.

         19                 While the industry claims that their

         20  structures project a sense of modernity, the low

         21  level of services endured by transit users and

         22  neighborhoods ill-served by this 30-year-old stale

         23  outdated concept must stop. While they are sometimes

         24  a welcome site, bad design and lack of amenities

         25  make shelters a daily insult to one million bus
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          2  riders a day.

          3                 No entirely profit-driven industry,

          4  but especially this one, should be handed the role

          5  of conceptualizing, designing and looking after our

          6  most vital public space assets for the next two

          7  decades.

          8                 We have a chance now to do several

          9  things at the same time, all of them positive, and

         10  in small enough parcels to attract a wide response.

         11                 Along with those 5,000 architects who

         12  are competing to share their visions for the World

         13  Trade Center site, for which only one can ever be

         14  realized, why not generate a torrent of mini

         15  projects along with this mega one. These tiny

         16  tributes to our neighborhoods can provide welcome up

         17  scale refuges for sidewalk entrepreneurs, public and

         18  other shared transit users and neighborhood

         19  browsers.

         20                 There are those that argue that even

         21  if ideas like this have merit, they have to be our

         22  long-term goal, and we must make sure that our

         23  current requirements can be met soon, using

         24  available and proving resources. Time is not the

         25  most important factor here though, quality is.
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          2                 Like in the rebuilding of downtown,

          3  here is a rare and precious opportunity to take a

          4  truly fresh look at a host of important issues from

          5  transit to urban design to the best use of public

          6  spaces.

          7                 The billboard industry historically

          8  has also been the media of last resort for health

          9  threatening and socially negative products, and

         10  unfortunately they have had the habit of unloading

         11  their most obnoxious cargoes into the City's most

         12  vulnerable neighborhoods.

         13                 In a time of considerable fiscal and

         14  other psychological stress, the opportunity to

         15  dramatically upgrade our public transit, public

         16  space, public information, public art and public

         17  health resources, without spending money we do not

         18  have, is rare and important.

         19                 We cannot afford to cheapen our

         20  surroundings for the next two decades on behalf of

         21  the liquor, fashion and advertising industries and

         22  lower our aspirations this way.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Steve, could you

         24  just sum up.

         25                 MR. STOLLMAN: We can do the opposite
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          2  and be very glad that we did. Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Ed Wallace and

          4  Bernard Parisot. Did I pronounce it right?

          5                 MR. PARISOT: I waive the opportunity

          6  to speak.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You waive the

          8  opportunity to speak. Can I have that in writing?

          9  No.

         10                 Robert Brill, and Bob Bookman. Robert

         11  is speaking and Bob is.

         12                 In the first panel that I called, by

         13  the way, I called somebody from the Municipal Arts

         14  Society, they didn't show. They're not here, I

         15  guess. They didn't come up.

         16                 MR. BOOKMAN: Good afternoon. My name

         17  is Robert Bookman. I am Counsel to the New York City

         18  Newsstand Operators Association, the trade group

         19  that represents what's left of the once vibrant

         20  sidewalk newsstand industry, which once had over

         21  1,400 newsstands in the City of New York, and today

         22  has about 300.

         23                 I'd like to first start off by

         24  thanking the Speaker of the Council, and you, Chair

         25  Avella, as well as the other Council members, who
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          2  happen to both be here on the Committee this

          3  afternoon, for all the efforts in the last few weeks

          4  to try to negotiate on our behalf a reasonable

          5  language concerning sidewalk newsstands.

          6                 The Intro, which was -- excuse me.

          7  The authorizing resolution, which was distributed

          8  earlier today, does include the authority for

          9  newsstands, but as I'm sure you're aware, without a

         10  separate legislative change dealing with changing

         11  the Administrative Code, as it relates to the

         12  licensing of newsstands, there is really little that

         13  the authorizing resolution would authorize the

         14  Administration to do, and it is that separate piece

         15  of legislation which we look forward to having

         16  public hearings on, which we have yet to do, seeing

         17  a draft of legislation, which we have yet to see,

         18  and I know that the publishers were not here today

         19  that represent this because they were told we were

         20  not moving forward on the newsstand portion. They

         21  have also written to you, Mr. Chair, and I know to

         22  Speaker Miller, saying that they have similar

         23  concerns, as the operators do, concerning inclusion

         24  of our newsstands in your street furniture project,

         25  and that we want to sit together and address these
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          2  issues.

          3                 Just there's no reason for me to

          4  reiterate the testimony that I have given on the two

          5  previous hearings on this issue, both in October

          6  29th and more recently on June 27th. I will just

          7  simply repeat for the record that sidewalk

          8  newsstands are privately-owned structures and are

          9  paid for by the individuals through a process that's

         10  been in existence for over 50 some odd years.

         11                 It's not like bus shelters, and it's

         12  not like toilets which the City owns and controls.

         13  These are individual people's businesses that they

         14  have paid for.

         15                 The concept that was announced here a

         16  year ago by Deputy Mayor Doctoroff, which is not yet

         17  been responded to in public, in any of the

         18  subsequent public hearings, of the Administration

         19  tearing down those existing structures, whether

         20  they're 20 years old or two months old, providing no

         21  compensation to the operators who pay to build those

         22  structures. Replacing them with a mandatory program

         23  that they have no say over with a structure that

         24  they want to pay $45,000 for, that we'll somehow,

         25  through some trick of legal mystery, would not own
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          2  this new structure that we pay $45,000 for and then

          3  put advertising in our structures and not share the

          4  income with us, continues to be their position,

          5  publicly at least, continues to be opposed by us on

          6  legal grounds, as well as equity grounds, and we

          7  look forward to working to see if there can be a

          8  change with their position on this.

          9                 Otherwise I would suggest that they

         10  continue with their street furniture project without

         11  newsstands.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 MR. BRILL: Chairman Avella,

         14  Chairwoman Katz, my name is Robert Brill. I

         15  testified previously at the October 29 hearings that

         16  were held in 2002 in opposition to this present

         17  legislation.

         18                 Let me say that I do believe that the

         19  resolution text that was in effect introduced today

         20  is an improvement. Let me say that I want to commend

         21  the chair for being open to examining some of the

         22  legislative issues and indeed improving on the

         23  Administration's past introduction.

         24                 Let me raise an issue, though, with

         25  both chairs. I've been trying since the Fall 2002 to
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          2  get a transcript of the September testimony of

          3  Deputy Mayor Doctoroff without success. In fact, to

          4  the point where I've had to write to get it. We've

          5  been going repeatedly to the City Clerk's office, we

          6  have been trying to reach out directly to get that.

          7  I think that the legislative process should not

          8  proceed unless that's made available to the public.

          9  Besides writing to the City Clerk, I've been trying

         10  to reach out to the Committee and to the City

         11  Council. I don't know how it's possible to get a

         12  copy, so I would ask you to help us.  And I don't

         13  think if a copy has not been available publicly, I

         14  don't think that this Committee should proceed until

         15  it is.

         16                 Similarly, with the October hearing,

         17  that transcript also has not been capable of being

         18  obtained by my office, and we've really tried. We've

         19  called, we've gone down in person, et cetera.

         20                 I realize that hearings that are held

         21  more close in time should take a little longer, but

         22  a September hearing where the Administration was, as

         23  my colleague Mr. Bookman has indicated, made certain

         24  statements on the record, that should be available

         25  to the public for review and for the City Council,
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          2  unless you have some type of availability of it.

          3                 I believe Member Quinn, in some

          4  statements earlier today, indicated something about

          5  the testimony of Mr. Doctoroff, so maybe you folks

          6  have a transcript, but the public or myself as a

          7  member of the public have not been able to get that.

          8                 One of my principle oppositions of

          9  this: The duration of this franchise. Twenty years

         10  is I think too long a period of time.

         11                 I've testified previously about this,

         12  but I've also testified about this during the

         13  Giuliani Administration, when Mayor Giuliani's

         14  incarnation of this franchise was put before the

         15  Council. I think it should be less years. I think it

         16  should be in line with other street furnitures who

         17  are all street franchises that exist or all other

         18  franchises that exist should be of a comparable

         19  nature.

         20                 As to newsstands, I still have a few

         21  newsstands clients, I know my colleague does also,

         22  let me just say this: I think newsstand operators

         23  are very capable, they have businesses. The notion

         24  that they shouldn't be able to share in commissions

         25  for advertising on their structures seems to me
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          2  anathema. They are a First Amendment protected

          3  entity, as the case, the decision of the US District

          4  Court for the Southern District of New York during

          5  the prior Administration indicated, and I think

          6  that, while I'm opposed to them being in the

          7  Streetscape franchise, nonetheless, I think that

          8  they should be capable of having an access to some

          9  of the commission revenue that can be generated. And

         10  certainly if they build their own structures, they

         11  can meet a design that's mandated, and there

         12  shouldn't be anything wrong with doing that, but why

         13  should they be excluded from an access to support

         14  their businesses?

         15                 One final point. I want to echo Mr.

         16  Bookman on one point that is a phenomenon that has

         17  affected at least one of my clients.

         18                 The Department of Consumer Affairs

         19  has not been issuing as it used to the permanent

         20  licenses to the newsstands. My clients have been

         21  getting temporary, month-to-month type of licenses,

         22  and when asked for why, what's the problem, we're no

         23  different from where we were before, the Department

         24  of Consumer Affairs says, oh, well, we've got a

         25  backlog, or there are other issues, but DOT has not
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          2  yet weighed in on your structures and the like.

          3                 Well, if it happens once, okay, but

          4  if it happens repeatedly, and this is something

          5  which has been going on for months and months and

          6  months, clearly there's another game afoot, and I

          7  think it's unfair to newsstand operators, who are

          8  licensees who pay money to the City, who generate

          9  some revenue for the City and the State, to suffer

         10  this way.

         11                 So, I hope that's something which

         12  this Committee will take note of and perhaps can

         13  find out a little bit more as to what's going on.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: A couple of

         16  comments, and I think Council Member Christine Quinn

         17  has a question.

         18                 First of all, in reference on the

         19  transcript, I think it was my staff that actually

         20  advised you that you have to get it from the City

         21  Clerk's Office, not from us.

         22                 MR. BRILL: I understand. But we've

         23  been trying repeatedly. And my point is, if that

         24  transcript has not been made available to you folks,

         25  okay, then clearly to vote on legislation where you
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          2  don't have the record of what Deputy Mayor Doctoroff

          3  testified to is an issue.

          4                 Now, if it's been made available to

          5  you and not to us, and we've written letters to the

          6  City Clerk.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Robert, we were

          8  there for the original testimony.

          9                 MR. BRILL: Look, so was I, but I

         10  think the proof is in the written record, and I

         11  think that's quite important. Some of your

         12  colleagues who will be voting on this at the full

         13  hearings, okay, will not have access to it and not

         14  have access to the ability to question you before

         15  you and this Committee vote on it.

         16                 So, I think something is inexplicable

         17  to me that the transcript of September is not

         18  available.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And just one

         20  quick comment that I think both of you and the

         21  industry can rest assured that the Speaker, myself,

         22  the Chair Katz, and our colleagues on the City

         23  Council, consider that priority the issues that

         24  you've raised, that's why we don't have a completed

         25  package here today, and that we are certainly not
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          2  giving up on these issues, and we will continue to

          3  press with the Administration a resolution.

          4                 MR. BOOKMAN: I appreciate that, and I

          5  would also ask, given that we're in the middle of

          6  the summer now, we don't rush at the last moment to

          7  come up with some quick answers to some serious

          8  problems, many of which I haven't even raised in

          9  these hearings yet because they are technical

         10  complicated problems, but there are a variety of

         11  them from down time to new license applications, to

         12  the language not meeting what they say.

         13                 The Commissioner earlier testified

         14  that the existing 300 newsstands will be replaced by

         15  new structures in their current locations.  That's

         16  not what Intro. 441 says, however. It says that at a

         17  location approved by the Department of

         18  Transportation, so that they're certainly giving

         19  themselves the wiggle room to move the existing 300

         20  newsstands to locations other than their existing

         21  locations.

         22                 These are all issues that get

         23  resolved in the language, and we certainly have to

         24  have hearings on language. Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I agree.
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          2                 Council Member Christine Quinn.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: This is a

          4  question for Mr. Bookman.

          5                 I don't know if you were here when I

          6  asked Commissioner Weinshall the question which is a

          7  follow up to some statements that you had made at

          8  the June hearing. I think at the June hearing you

          9  had raised questions of constitutionality of the

         10  proposal since it proposed to treat newsstands

         11  differently than how pay phones get treated in the

         12  City, and when I asked her about it, she -- I don't

         13  know if you were here or not -- her basic comment is

         14  --

         15                 MR. BOOKMAN: DoITT handles that. She

         16  said that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right, she

         18  couldn't comment because that pay phones were

         19  handled by DoITT and it was a different agency. I

         20  just didn't know if you had anything further you

         21  wanted to add on that on the record. I mean, I'm

         22  concerned, because if we're moving the proposals

         23  forward to try to accomplish something and there is

         24  the looming possibility of lawsuits or other actions

         25  that then would make proposals not be able to be
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          2  implemented, it seems like we should address those

          3  issues to the degree that we can before, because

          4  obviously passing something that's just going to get

          5  tied up in litigation doesn't really meet, you know,

          6  really the objectives obviously.

          7                 MR. BOOKMAN: I agree, which is all

          8  the more reason why there needs to be an agreement

          9  with the industry and the publishers, and

         10  unfortunately, we appreciate that the Administration

         11  is negotiating with you folks on this issues, and we

         12  thank you for that negotiation on our behalf.

         13                 I think it would be more productive

         14  if they actually sat down with the industry and

         15  discussed all of these issues, but they don't seem

         16  to think that that's a useful use of their time. We

         17  respectfully disagree, and we'll negotiate through

         18  the Council, if that's what has to be done. But

         19  clearly, if there's not an agreement on these

         20  fundamental legal issues, there's going to be

         21  litigation, and these litigations tend to take, you

         22  know, years, not weeks.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So your

         24  concerns about constitutionality still exist?

         25                 MR. BOOKMAN: The concept of taking
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          2  people's private property away with no compensation,

          3  forcing them to take somebody else's private

          4  property, paying for it and not owning it, yes, I'd

          5  say that those are still serious constitutional

          6  issues.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          8  Gioia.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Bookman. And I'm sorry I missed part of your

         11  testimony and part of the hearing. But just

         12  listening to your response to Council Member Quinn's

         13  question, and you outlining your concerns about the

         14  constitutionality, can you describe the outreach

         15  efforts that have been made thus far by the City to

         16  your clients to negotiate this and to find a

         17  solution that's agreeable to both sides?

         18                 MR. BOOKMAN: Sure. It will be a very

         19  quick answer because there's been very little

         20  outreach.

         21                 About a year, over a year ago, prior

         22  to Deputy Mayor Doctoroff's testimony, we had some

         23  discussions with the Department of Consumer Affairs

         24  who was the licensing agency for newsstands about a

         25  variety of licensing issues, street furniture came
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          2  up as one of the topics in that conversation, kind

          3  of along the lines of what was your guy's objections

          4  last time? Since Deputy Mayor's testimony here

          5  almost a year ago, there has been no meetings with

          6  the operator portion of the industry. We've asked on

          7  numerous times to meet directly. Those requests have

          8  been turned down.

          9                 There have been two meetings with the

         10  publishers, a recent one at the publisher's request

         11  just a few weeks ago, in which the publishers

         12  represent, specifically ask that the operators be

         13  there, and they were specifically told no.

         14                 So, that is, you know, we're ready,

         15  willing and able to sit down and be flexible and

         16  discuss these issues and negotiate with it, but so

         17  far the Council has been the only body who has been

         18  willing to listen.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

         20  gentlemen.

         21                 MR. BOOKMAN: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The last speaker

         23  signed up on this issue is April Sepanski. Is she

         24  here?

         25                 Is there anybody else who wishes to
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          2  speak on this item? Otherwise, after she is through

          3  we will close the public hearing on this aspect of

          4  it.

          5                 MS. SEPANSKI: Hello. My name is April

          6  Sepanski, and my husband has a licensed newsstand in

          7  Manhattan on Columbus Avenue. I am a pending

          8  newsstand applicant, and we've been waiting a very

          9  long time to find out what's happening with our

         10  industry.

         11                 My son, I brought him with me, we've

         12  been here since ten, so he's a little messed up. He

         13  took a nap, a 45-minute nap, around 11:00.

         14                 I just wanted you to get to see a

         15  live newsstand licensed operator. A lot of them are

         16  not here, and some of them are vocal and the

         17  majority are not. A lot of them have no idea what's

         18  going on because they're not really kept informed. I

         19  have to keep a close ear to what's going on with Mr.

         20  Bookman's group, the Association, and a lot of

         21  people, I came here to represent the ones that

         22  aren't, and they really, a lot of them are scared, a

         23  lot of them are confused, they can't understand

         24  what's wrong with their newsstands. Some people are

         25  willing and they understand how the City wants
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          2  things to look nice and new for the years that we're

          3  in now, but others don't have any idea what is wrong

          4  with their structures. If they're not leaking,

          5  they're operating, why do they have to be changed?

          6                 I understand this. I happen to love

          7  the City. I understand we have all the tourists from

          8  all over the world coming here, and a lot of the

          9  newsstands might need repair, they might need a new

         10  look. We're willing to cooperate as long as we're

         11  kept informed. That's the problem. No one is kept

         12  informed. Either the people don't have the time to

         13  stay here for four hours waiting, they have other

         14  things that they have to do. I made an effort to

         15  stay and it's really cold in this room, and that's

         16  why I borrowed someone else's sweatshirt, and I

         17  wasn't dressed to wear a sweatshirt. But I just want

         18  you to know that we can and we do understand. We're

         19  not a group of people that, you know, we just care

         20  about ourselves. You know, a lot of us, you know,

         21  like the regular group of population, some people

         22  care more than others, but the ones that are in Mr.

         23  Bookman's Association, we want to be informed and we

         24  want to help, but we don't want to be, you know, put

         25  down as if we couldn't possibly understand what the
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          2  City wants to do. We want to be kept informed.

          3                 And any money that is made from the

          4  advertisement, knowing that the City does need extra

          5  money, we understand that too. But we should not be

          6  railroaded and just squashed out of the whole system

          7  of how this is done, and even any money that is

          8  gotten from these advertisers, right now our

          9  newsstands for all these years, we've had it,

         10  there's a law that we can paste no bills. We can put

         11  one ad up saying Snapple on the outside of our

         12  newsstand.

         13                 Now, when the companies come and they

         14  make the money for the City, we understand that,

         15  that's fine. Why can't we get five percent, ten

         16  percent of the income made? That would be fair.

         17                 I mean, we need the money to clothe

         18  our children, to give them tutoring when they have

         19  problems in school. We need the money to, you know,

         20  anything, to have cars, put gas in our cars with the

         21  gas prices the way they are, just keep us informed

         22  and we will answer you back, that's my main

         23  information I want to give to you.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. And
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          2  rest assured, we share your concerns, and the issues

          3  that we raise are part of what we're discussing with

          4  the Administration.

          5                 MS. SEPANSKI: Okay, thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: With that, I'm

          7  going to ask Counsel to call the vote on the various

          8  items. And just for information sake I'll go through

          9  everything.

         10                 We have already voted on the

         11  community facilities part of the agenda this

         12  morning. We are laying over item, the preconsidered

         13  Intro. 20035027LLY. We are voting on the street

         14  furniture resolution, which is Land Use No. 226. We

         15  are also voting on the extending the bus shelter

         16  franchise, Intro. 466. Voting on 394. We are laying

         17  over 423, which is the pay phone franchise. We are

         18  voting on Land Use No. 427, 428, 429. We are

         19  amending Land Use items 448 and 449 in eliminating

         20  the northern portion of the rezoning application, so

         21  in effect we are only approving the southern portion

         22  of the application. And we are also voting on the

         23  sidewalk cafes 466, 467, 468 and 470.

         24                 The Chair recommends approval with

         25  the appropriate modifications.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Avella.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

          4                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          5  Quinn.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Again, thanks

          7  to both Chairperson Katz, Avella and the staff, I

          8  just wanted to thank Chairperson Katz and Avella and

          9  the staff of the Committee for their help on the

         10  Hudson Square Rezoning proposal, and I vote aye.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         12  Gioia.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: I vote yes to

         14  all.

         15                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         16  Katz.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Permission to

         18  explain my vote?

         19                 I just want to make a comment on the

         20  street furniture. I think that today's authorizing

         21  resolution is a very good first step to creating

         22  coordinated street furniture in the City of New

         23  York. I mean, I'm comfortable with the authorizing

         24  resolution with regard to the bus shelters, and the

         25  toilets, with the fact that the Council and the
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          2  Mayor are going to have the approval power of the

          3  site selection of the toilets, and I think that

          4  that's an important first step.

          5                 And just to address Mr. Bookman's

          6  comments on rushing to the newsstands issue. I

          7  believe that this Council and this Administration

          8  and the Speaker especially have spent several,

          9  several hours and days and weeks really over the two

         10  years working on the street furniture element,

         11  including the newsstands issue. And so I don't

         12  believe we're rushing through anything and I believe

         13  he's competent in that as well. And I'm also anxious

         14  to reach an agreement in the next month or so about

         15  the newsstand that is a good agreement and

         16  acceptable to everyone. I do believe it's a good

         17  first step. I thank the Chair for his time and I

         18  vote aye on all.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         20  at five in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

         21  abstentions, and are referred to the full Land Use

         22  Committee.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

         24  everyone.

         25                 This closes this meeting of the
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          2  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises. I appreciate

          3  everybody's cooperation today.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 2:15 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )
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          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the
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